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To The Members of Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
{("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive profit,
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. OQur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion gn the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit ar otherwise appears fo be
materially misstated.




Deloitte
Haskins & Sells

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board
of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional ornissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
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s Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disciosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a2 manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. The Company’s
daily backup of it accounting records are maintained in servers physically located
outside India (Refer Note 39.A to the standalone financial statements).
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c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalcne financial statements comply with the
Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a directer in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith, are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report
expresses an unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16} of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 36 to the
standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly iend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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vi.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the financial statements,
no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11{e), as provided under (a) and (b) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has

not proposed final dividend for the year.

Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company w.e.f. 01 April 2023,
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and

Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended

31 March 2023,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
*Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 0080725)

i*‘ ' \/'\"‘:/‘)L@ "{"é‘.l:_ '

R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

{(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWIZX2169

Place: Chennai

Date: 10 August 2023
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ANNEXURE “A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i)} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Dr. Agarwal’s Health Care Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the Ind AS standalone financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements, assassing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone financial
statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control with reference to standalone financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acguisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to standalone
financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control with reference te standalone financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us with, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at
31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with reference to
standalone financial statements established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No, 0080725)

%us o N2
.7\ ! V\M’k G\.rg{//-i .
R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner

(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWIZX2169

Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i) In respect of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars )
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets except in the
case of Property, Plant and Equipment, where the Company is in the process of
updating the records for quantitative details and situation of certain assets.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

{b) The Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets
were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification at
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties, which are reported under
Property, Plant and Equipment and, hence, reporting under clause(i)(c) of the CARO 2020
is not applicable.

In respect of immovable properties that have been taken on lease and disclosed as Right
of use assets as at the Balance sheet date, the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment (including
right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016} and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared with
books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Hence, reporting on the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions is not applicable.
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(iii} (&) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantee during the year and details
of which are given below:
(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Loans Guarantees
A, Aggregate amount granted/provided during

the year :

- Subsidiaries 3.05 &
- Associates = _

B. Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
in respect of above cases:*

- Subsidiaries 27.19 90.04
- Associates - -

*The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions made. The
above amounts include Rs. 34.19 crores of loan outstanding (including interest of
Rs. 7.29 crores) from one of the subsidiaries in respect of which the Company has created
a provision for impairment considering the operational and financial performance of the
subsidiary. Refer Notes 9a and 16 of the standalone financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2023,

The Company has not granted any advances in nature of loans or provided security to any
other entity during the year.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant
of all the above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Refer Note to clause (iii}(a)
above.

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal is
stipulated as to be repaid over a period of 5 years, though specific instalments for each
period has not been specified. However, the payment of interest has not been stipulated.
The repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are regular as per stipulation
except for the following:

Name of the | Nature Amount in | Due Date Extent of
entity INR Crores delay

Elisar Life | Payment of 7.29 | Not Available Not

Sciences Pvt | Interest determinable
Limited

(d) In respect of following loans granted by the Company, which have been overdue for
more than 90 days at the balance sheet date, as explained to us, the Management has
taken reasonable steps for recovery of the principal amounts and interest. Refer Note to
clause (iii)(a) above in respect of the loan provided to the subsidiary.

(e) No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has fallen
due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) According to information and explanation given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Refer Note to clause (iii)(a)
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(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and
securities provided, as applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the year.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

{(vi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has maintained the cost records which has been specified by the Central
Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed
the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended and prescribed by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Income-tax, duty of
Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally
been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities except for few delays in
respect of dues towards provident fund due to delay in KYC verification, labour welfare
fund and professional tax.

{b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty of Custom,
Professional Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2023
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except for
provident fund professional tax and tabour welfare fund aggregating Rs. 0.01 crores.

(c) There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a} above which have not been
deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2023.

(viii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there
were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the
Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the
loans were obtained, other than temporary deployment pending application.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds
ed on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for Iong -term
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(&) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or persons on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries or associate.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and, hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has made private placement of new equity shares during the year. For
such allotment of shares, the Company has complied with the requirements of Section 42
and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds raised have been, prima facie, applied
by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the funds were raised, other
than temporary deployment pending application.

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented by the Management, there were no whistie blower complaints received
by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and, hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2020 Order is not applicable.

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the detaiis of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports issued te the Company during the year
and covering the period up to 31 March 2023, in determining the nature, timings and
extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
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{b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is
no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and, accordingly, reporting under clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year,

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company was not having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or
turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more
during the immediately preceding financial year and hence, provisions of section 135 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 008072S)
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh
Partner
{(Membership No. 214045)
UDIN: 23214045BGWI1ZX2169
Place: Chennai
Date: 10 August 2023




Or. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particutars Note Ne. | Asat 3IstMarch 2023 | As at 31st March 2022
I. ASSETS
{1) Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment s{a) 21571 1i4.47
(b} Capital work-in-progress 5{B) 35.08 1.85
[e) Right of use asset ] 260.52 130.25
[d} Goodwill 7 216.21 90.23
() Other Intangible assets 7 214,50 32.20
{f) Financial assets
(i) Investments -3 153.66 147.41
{ii} Loans sia} 1.89 21.08
{iii) Other Financial assets 9(B) 17.59 12.36
(g) Income tax assets {net} 1z 28.39 17.43
{h} Deferred tax assets [nat) 13.1 39.00 -
(i) Cther non-current assats 10 4.35 211
Total Nen - current Assets 1,185.91 569.55
{2) Current assets
[2) Inventories 11 20.33 17.51
(] Financtal assets
(i} Irvestments 8{B) 33.65 -
(if) Trade receivables 14 39.72 30.53
(iif} Cash and cash equivalents 15{A} 76,81 43.74
(iv} Other Bank balances 15 (8] 20.67 16.26
(v} Other Financial Assets 16 2.35 6.96
[c) Other current assets 10 7.13 7.80
Total current assets 200.67 122.30
TOTAL ASSETS 1,387.58 692.45
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
{2} Equity Share capital 17 7.93 6.36
{b) Other eguity 18 553.63 192.05
Total Equity 561,56 198.91
{2) Non-current liahlllties
{z) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 266.09 228.14
{ii} Lease Liability 40 254.45 140.15
{iil} Other financial liabilities o] 88.59 71.32
LN I 21 159 1¢
Total Non - Current Liabilities [ eam 377.23
(3] Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liahilities
{i) Borrowings 23 41,16 2371
{ii) Lease Liability 40 28.80 15.97
{iii) Trade payables
- Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 24 14.16 6.76
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro 24 46,14 46.91
enterprisas and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 20 7771 17.73
(b} Other current liabilities 22 4,16 4.56
{c} Provisions 21 1.17 0.67
Total Current Liahilities 213.30) 116.31
TOTAL LIABILITIES £26.02 493.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,387.58 692.45

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the Board of Drectors

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Numbar: 0G80725
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh Dr. Anash Agarwal
Partner Whoaletime Director
Membership Na.: 214045 DIN: 01074272 DIN; 02636035 ‘
t
OnBIEI
.

Mr. B.Udhay Shankar M, Thanikainathan Arumugam

Chief Financial Offjcer Cempany Secretary
Place : Chennat Place : Chennai

Date : 1Gth August 2023 Date : 10th August 2023




|Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Standalong Statement of Profit and Loss as at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

: For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars Note No.
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
| Revenue from Operations 25 557.64 361.59
Il Other Income 26 i7.70 10.37
il Total Incame {1+} 615.34 371.96
IV Expenses
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 27 64.70 45.89
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 28 {2.51) {2.93)
Employes benefits expense 28 90.83 59.18
Finance costs 30 61.86 36,57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 31 91.76 58.29
Qther expenses 32 2B5.32 174.91
Total expenses {IV) 591.98 372.91
V' Profitf{loss) before exceptional items and 23.36 {0.95)
fax {IlI- IV}
V1 Exceptional tems 9{AJ& 16 29.20 -
Wil Loss before tax [V-VI) [5.84) {0.95)
VIl Tax expense
(a) Current tax 12.2 157 -
{b) Deferred tax 13.2 {39.00) 0.52
(37.43} 0.52
IX Profit/{Loss) for the Year (WIkA111) 31.59 {1.47)
X Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
{a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / {asset) {0.68) (0.B3)
{b) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 13.1 - -
orofit or loss
Total ather comprehensive loss for the year {0.68) {0.80}
X' Total compschensive Profitfloss for the year (IX+X)} 30.91 (2.27
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs.10/- each} 41
(a) Basic {in Rs.) 40.35 {2.15)
{b} Diluted {in Rs.) 40.20 (2.15)

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalene financial statements

In terms of our report attached

Faor Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 0080725
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R. Prasanna Venkatesh

Partner
Membership No.: 214045

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

7

or. Al Aghrwal
Wholetiphe Director
DIN: 01074272

. UESG_Q—Q/&V

Place : Chennai
Date : 10th August 2023

Mr. B.Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer

Ptace : Chennai
Cate : 10th August 2023
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Dr. Anosh Agarwal
Whaletime Director
DIN: 02636035

A

Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam

Company Secretary




Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Standal Cash Flow Statement as on 31st March 2023

{Amaunt in Rs. Crores]

For the Year ended

For the Year ended

partlcdlare 31t March 2023 31st March 2022
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Frofitf{l.oss} after tax for the year 31.59 {1.47)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 91.76 59.29
Incame taxes {current znd defarred taxes) {37.43) 0.52
Finance Costs / Interest Expense on financial liabilities at amortized cost 51.86 36.57
|nterast Incame - Bank & other investmeants (5.66} {3.54]
Interast Income - Dther Financial Assets at amortized cost (1.29}) [0.14)
Lizhilities / pravisions ne longer reguired written back {0.44) [2.29)
Net gain on termination of right-of-use assets - (2.43)
toss / (Profit) on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment [Net} {0.05) =
Allowance for Expected Credit Losses 671 5.30
ioss on praperty, plant and eguipment discarded - 0.48
Interest an Income Tax refund {0.19) {1.43)
Unrealised foreign Exchange Loss / {Gain) 0.28 a7
provision for doubtful loans and advanees / Impairment loss {refer Note 9 A} 29,20 3.09
Dividend Income {3.00} =
Profit on Redemption of Current Investments {4.68) -
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 168.68 94.12
Movements in working capital:
Decrease / (increass) in Inventories (2.81) {5.14)
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade Receivables {17.24) {11.25)
{Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Other Financial 2ssets {Current and Non Current) 22.50 {5.95}
{increase) / Decrease in Other Assets {Current] 037 {4.29)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 6.39 262
[Becrease) / Increasa in Dther Financial Uzbilities {Current and Non Current) {11.251 10.64
(Pecrease) / increase in Provisions {Current and Non Current) 2.53 {0.36)
[Decrease) / Increase in Other Liabilities (Current) (0.40) 174
Changes in Working Capital changes 0.49 {13.03}
169,17 81.09
Income taxes (paid) - net of refunds {12.28) {2.79)
MNet cash generated by operating activities 156.89 78.30
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Capital Expenditure en Property, Plant and Equipment (89.58) {23.40)
Amount spent on account of Business acquisitions {307.85) {50.88)
Deferred consideration paid towards acquisition liabilities (8.72} {4.00)
Proceeds from Sale of Praoperty, Plant and Fguipment 0.05 11.96
Salef{Purchase} of Investments (Net} {35.26) {25.00)
Increase in Bank balances not considerad as Cash and cash equivalents (4.40} (7.20)
Interest Received from Bank & other investments 2T 1.09
Dividend income 3.00 B
Net cash flows used in investing activities (439.59) {98.43)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds/{Repayment} of borrowings 94.00 55.13
Finance cests paid on borrowings {23.26) (21.63)
Proceeds from issue of equity shares of the company 300.00 14.76
Proceeds from issue/{conversion) of Debentures of the company - 20.08
Fayment of |ease liabilities (54.57) {28.17)
Net cash flows from financing activities 316.17 40.17




br. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Standalone Cash Flow Statement as on 315t March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crares)

T For the Year ended For the Year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C] 33.07 20.03
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 43.74 23,71
Cash and tash equivalents at the end of the year 76.81 43.74
In terms of aur report atfached

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells

Chartered Accountants

Firm'ﬁgigistratinn Number: 0080725

(Peeq o s

Bt AV endet

R. Prasanna Venkatesh Or? Agarwal Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Pariner
Membership Ma.: 214045

Place : Chennai
Date : 10th August 2023

Whgletime Director
DIN: 01074272

\M\/

Mir. B.Udhay Shankar
Chief Financial Officer
Place : Chennai

Date : 10th August 2023

Wholetime Director
DIN: 02636035

it

Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam

Company Secretary
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Lare Umited
Notes to the Standalene Financlal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
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3.3

3.4

ERY

Corporate Information

Dr. Agarwal's Heaith Care Limited [‘the Company’] was incarporated on 19 April 2010 and is primarlly engaged in running, owning and managing eye care
hospitals, apticals, pharmacies, eic. and related sarvices. As at 31 March 2023, the Campany Is operating in 98 locations in India.

Application of New and Revised Ind AS

All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Alfairs under the £ ias {indian ing S | Rulas,
2015 {as amended) tiH the Fnancial statements are authorised have been considered in preparing these financial statemants. There is ne other indian
Accounting Standard that has been issued as of that date but was not mandatarily effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as [ssued from time to time, On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies {indian Accounting Stzndards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies
{Indian Accounting Standards) Amendmends Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, 2s below:

Ind AS 1- of Finaneial -

This smendment requires the entities ta disclose their materiai accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effzctive date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023,

tnd AS B+ Accounting Policias, Changes in Acgounting Estimates and Errars -

This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included amendmants to Ind AS 8 to help entittes distinguish changes in
atceunting pelicies from changes in accounting estimates, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 0L
April 2023

ind AS 12 - Income Taxes -

This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting
temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment Is annual periods beginning on or after QL Aprit 2023,

The Company is in the gracess of evaluating the impact of the ahove an the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accardance with tndfan Accounting Standards notified under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards)
Rulgs, 2015 and refevant ammendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorised for the issue by the Company's Board of Directars on August 10, 2023

Basls of and of Financial

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except lfor certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting perfod, as explained in accounting policies Delow. Historical cost i generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange far poods and services,

Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pafd to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using snother valuation techmigue. in estimating the fair value of an
asset or a llability, the Company takes into zccount the characteristics of the asset or liahllity if market participants would take those characteristics into
aceount when pricing the asset or liahility at the measurement date.

In additlan, for financial reporting purposes, fair valle measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, ar 3 hased on the degree te which the inpets to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described a5 foilaws:

= tavel L inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in activa markeats for identical assets or fiahilities that the entity can access at the measurament date;
» Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quated grices included within Level 1, that are ohservable far the asset or liability, either directly ar indirectly; and
= Level 3 inputs are unohservable inpuis for the asset or liability.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statemesnts requires the Management to make estimates and assumpticns considered in the reported amounts of assets
and lishifities [i ing contingent labilities] as of the date of the financial statements and the reported income and expanses during the reparting period.
Examples of such estimates Inciude provision for doubtful debts/advances, provision for employee benefits, useful lives of fixed assets, tease term,
provision for contingencies etc. Management believes that the estimates used in the prepasation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.
Future results may vary fram these estimates. Estimates and underlylng assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively in the year in which the estimate is revised and/or in future years, as applicable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents (for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement]

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques and dernand drafts on hand, balances with banks in current accounts / demand deposits. Cash equlvalents are short-
term balances {with 2n originzl maturity of three months or less fram the date of acquisition}, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insigmificant risk of changes in valua. Bank balances other than the balanes included in cash and cash
equivalents represents balance on accaunt of margin money deposit with banks and batances in earmarked Escrow accounts.

Cash Finw Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss] hefare extraardinary items and tax & adjusted for the effects of transactions of
non-cash nature and any defezrals ar aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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Functional and Presentation Cusrency

Iterns Included in the finandial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary econom|c enviranment in which the Company
operates {i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial staterents are presented in indian Rupees (As.), the natonal currency of India, which is the
functional turrency of the Company. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees excep for share data and as othenwise stated.

Operating Cycle

Based an the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realizatian ia cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classificaton of its assets and lishilities as current and non-
currant,

Business Combinations

Business combinatians in which contrel is acquired are accounted far using the acguisition methad, ether than those between entities subject to cammon
cantrol. The eonsideration transferred In a business comblnation is massured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair velues
of the assets wansferred by the Company, liabilities incurred hy the Company to the former owners of the acguiree and the equity interests issued by the
Cormpany in exchange of control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in Statement af Profit and Loss as incurred. Cantingent
cansideration, if any, is measurad at its acquisition date fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair values are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
uniess such ad] qualify as nent period adj in which such it is adjusted to the cost of arquisition.

IFthe initial accounting for a business camhbination is incomplete by the end of the reparting period in which the combinatian accurs, the Campany reports
provisianal ameunts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those pravisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period, ar
additionai assets ar zhilities are recognized, to reflect new informaticn obtained about facts and circumstances that existed s of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognized 25 of that date. The measurement periad Is the perfod fram the date of acquisition to the data the
Company obtains complete infermation abaut facts and circumstances that exjsted as of the isition date. The period is subject to 3
maximum of one year subsequent ta the acquisition date.

At the acquisition date, the identiffable assets acquired and the lisbilties assumed are recognised at thelr falr value, except that daferred tax assets or
Tiabilities related to emplayee benefits arrangements are recognised and messured In accordance with Ind AS 12 Income taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee
benefits respectively. | ible assets acqui in & busingss ¢ and ri ized y from poadwill are Initially recognized at their fair
value at the acquisition date. Goodwlil 1s measured as the excess of the sum of the cansideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree {if any) over the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. Contracts acquired in a
business combination are assessed for whether favorable or unfavorable refative to current market terms and If such favorable ar unfaverable terms exist,

the Company adjusts the effacts of such terms in the measurernent of the related assets or liabilities.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownershlp Inferests and entltie their holders to s proportionate share of the eniity's net assets in the event of
[leuidation may be initlally measured either at fair value or at the nen-controlling interests’ propartionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree's identifisble net assets. Contingent liabilities acquired in 3 business binatlen are initially d 2t fair valua at the date of acquisition.

When a business comkination is achieved in stages, the Company's previously held equity interest In the acquiree is remeasured to its acq
value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, Is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising fram interests in the acguires prior to the acquis
have previously been recognised in other comprebensive incoma are reclassified to profit or luss where such treatwent would be appropriate i that
nterest ware disposed of.

Pragerty, Plant & Equipment

Froperty, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost [ess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment foss {if any). The cost of Property, £lant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates and includes taxes, duties, freight, incidental expenses related to the
acquisition and instaiation of the assets concerned and is net Goods and Service Tax {GST], wherever the credit is availed. Borrowing costs paid during the
period of construetion in respect of borrowed funds pertaining to construction / acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment is adjusted to the
carrying cost of the underlying properly, plant and aquipment.

Any part or components of property, plant and equipment which are separately identifiable and expected to have a useful life which is different from that
of the main assets are capitalized separately, based on the technical assessment of the Managemeant.

Advances paid towards the acguisition of Property, Plant and Equipment cutstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as "Capital Advances” under
Other Non Current Assets and cost of Property, Plant and £quipment not ready to use Before such date are disclosad under “Capital Work- in- Progress™.

Depreciation

Depreclahle amount for assets is the cost of an asset less its estimated residual value.

Depreciation on tangikle property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight fine method {refer Note 5.1{a) for change in method of
depreciation effective 1st April 2022) as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l 10 the Companies Act, 2013 except in cases of certain assets where the
management's astimate of the useful life based en technical assessment is less than the life prescribed in Schedule 11 in which case depreciation is provided
on the useful life as assessed by the management.

Category Useful life
Leasehold Improvements Qver |ease term
Medical Equipments 1-13 years
Office Equipments 5-8years
Vehicles 8-10 years
Computers 3-6 years
Eiectrical Fittings 10 years
Fueniture and Fixtures 810 years
Lab 10 years

Depreciation is accelerated on property, plant and equipment, based on their condition, usability etc., as per the technical estimates of the Management,
whese necessary.

An item of praperty, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or whan no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of the asset, Any gain or loss arlsing on the disposal or retirement of an jtem of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recagnized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss.
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes to the Standalane Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

3.10 Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the cansideration transferred, the amount of any nan-contralfing interests in the acguiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previausly held equity interest in the acquire (if any} aver the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the fabilities assumed.

For the purpose of Impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, ailoeated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units that are expected to henefit from the combinatlon, frrespective of whether ather assets or liakillties of the acquiree are assigned to those
unlts. Cash generating unit to which goodwil] has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recavarable amount of the cash generating unitis less than Tts carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduze
the carrying ampunt of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then Lo the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impafrment loss far goodwill is recognized in the Statement of Prafit and Loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is nat reversed in
subsequent periods.

Where goadwll) has heen allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or |oss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measurad based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the partion of the cash-generating unlt retained.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carsied at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated Impalement losses
{If ary). The intanglile assels are amortized over their respective Individual estimatad Lseful lives on a siraight-lineg basis, commencing from the date of
asset available tc Company for its use. The useful life considered for the intangible assets are as under:

Particulars Usetul Lives

Software 5 years

Trademarks 10 years

Customer Relationship 5 years

Non-Compete Agreement Agreed term or 5 years whichever is lower

The estimated useful {ife and amoriization method are reviewad zt the end of each reporting periad, with the effect of 2ny changes in estimate being
accounted for on prospective bagis. Intangible assets with Indeflnlte useful lves that are acquired separately are casried at cost less accumulated
impafrment losses.

An Intangihle asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fram use of disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecogniticn of an intangibie asset measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset as recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

and

Expanditure on resgarch activities are recognized as expense in the period in which it s incurred

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (o from development phase of an internal project) is recognized if, and eniy If, all the
following have been demonstrated:

a) the techniczi feasibllity of completing the intangibie assets so that it will be available for use or sale;

&) the intention te complete the intangible asset and use or sellit;

) the ability to use or sel| the intangible asset;

d) how the | ible asset will prabable luture ic benefits;

e} the avaifability of adequate technical, financial and other resources te complete the davelapment and to use or sell the intangittte asset; and

1) the ability to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount [nitially reccgnized fer internally-generated intangible zssets Is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the daie when the intanglble asset
first meets the recognltion criteria listed above. Where na internally-generated asset can be recognized, iture 1s ri ized in the
statement of profit and loss in the pericd in which it is incurred.

1t EO initial r ion, internally ible assets are reported at cost less accurulated amortization and accumulated impairment
lossas, on the same basis as intangtble assers that are acquired separately.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

Al the end of each regorting period, the Campany reviews the carrying 2mounts of its tangible and intangible assets to detarmine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amaunt of the asset is astimated in order te
determine the extent of the impairment loss [if any). Where it s not possible to estimate the recaverable amount of an individual asset, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to whick the asset belongs. Where a and consi; basfs of 1 can be
identified, corporate assats are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, er otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for whichar angd i i 3 basis can be Identified.

Intangible assets with indeflnite useful lives and intangibie assets not yet avallahle for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indjcation that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverabie amount js the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vakue in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate thal reflects current market assessments of the time value of meney and the risks specific ta the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have nat been adjusted.

If the recovershle amount of an asset {or cash-generating unit) is estimated ta Be less than 15 carrying amount, the carrying amaunt of the asset {or cash
generating wnit) 1s reduced to its rec bie amount. An impai loss is recognized Immediately in the Statemant of Profit and Loss, unless the
relevant assetis carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment lass is treated as a reveluation decrease.

When an impalrment |gss subsequently reverses, the carrying ameunt of the asset [or a cash generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but 5a that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the tarrying amount that wouid have been determined hzd ng impairment
loss baen recognized for the asset lor cash generating unit) in prier years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately Tn profit or lass.

The Company's policy for impairment of Gocdwill Is given in Nate 3.10 abave.
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Equity in Sub: les and A

Investrent in Subsidiaries and Associates are carried at cost in the Standalone Financial Statements as permitted under Ind &S Z7.
Inventories

Inventory of Traded Goods cemprising Opticals, Pharmaceutical Products, Contacl Lenses and Accessaries and Consumables are valued at lower of cost
ascertained using the Fiest-in-First-cut methad and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, freight, taxes, duties and other charges incurred for
bringing the goeds to the present location and condition and are net of G3T credit, wherever credit has been availed.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selfing price forinventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary ta make the sale.

Due allowance Is estimated and made for unusable/ non-saleable/ expired lters of inventory wherever necessary, based on the past experiance of the
Company and such allowarices are adjusted against the Inventery carrylng value,

Revenue Recognitlon

(i) Rewenie from Operations

Revenue is measiired at the fair value of the consideration received or recgivable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or
services o customers in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for thase praducts or services. Sales and Service
Income exclude Gonds and Service Tax [GST) and are net of trade / volume discounts, where applicable.

Sale of prodscts comprising Sale of Optical Frames and Lens, Pharmaceutical Products, Contact Lens and related accessories and food items is recognised en
defivery of items to the customers and when cantrol on goods is passed on to the customers.

Sale af services comprising Inceme from Cor ion, Surgeries, Try and et performed are recegnised when perfarmance abligation is
satisfied at a point in time, an randering the related services.

Other Operating Intoms tomprises medical support services provided by the Company and is recognised an rendering the related services.

(ii) Other Income

Interest incomne from a financial asset is recognized when itis probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company and the amaunt of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by referance to the principal outstanding and at the effective Intersst rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected iife of the financial asset ta that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Dividend Income is accounted for when right to receive itis established.

(iil] Cross Chaeges

The Company and Dr Agarwal's’ Health care Limited (BAHCL) its Holding company, Incur expenses such as salaries, software develapment and depreciation
on comman assets etc on behalf of the group company and share the cammon resources for the group functions, Such expenses, which are incurred for the
group, are [dentified, and cross-charped hetween the comganies.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Initial facognition:
On Initial recognition, all fareign currency transactions are recorded by applying to the foreign currancy amount the exchange rate betwean the reporting

currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Subsequent Recognition:
As at the reporting date, non monetary items which are earried in terms of historical cost denaminated In a foreign corrency are reported using the

exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Treztment of Exchange Differsnees:
All monetary assets and liabiiities in foreign currency are restated at the end of accounting perrad at the closing exchange rate and exchange differences on

restatement of all manztary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.18 Employee enefits

3.20

Retirement benefit £osts 2nd terminadaon benefits:

i} Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee defined henefit plans include gratuity.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised 25 2n expense when employees have rendered service entitiing them ta the

contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with zctuarial valuations
being carried put at the and of each annual reporting peried. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
cailing {if applicable) and the return on plan assets fexcluding net interest), is reftected immediately in the balance sheet with 2 charge or credit recognized
tn other comprehensive Income fnn the period in which they occur, Rer tzed in other prehensive income I8 reflected immediately in
retained 2arnings and is nat reclassified te profit ar loss. Past service cost is recognized In the Statement of prafit or loss in the periad of a pfan amendmant.
Net interest is calcuiated by applying the discount rate at the beglnning of the period o the net defined benefit fiability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

- Sendce cost lincluding current service cost, past service cost, as well as galns and [osses on curizilments and settlements);
- Net interest expense or income; and

- Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two cemponents of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee benefits expense’. Curtailment gains
and losses are accaunted for as past service costs.

The retirement benzfit obligation recognized in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus n the Company's defined benzfit plans. Any
surplus resuliing from this calculation is imited te the present value of zny economic berefits available in the farmt of refunds fram the plans or reductions
in future contributions to tha plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earliar of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the
entity recognizes any related restructuring casts,

The Company makes cantribution ta a scheme administered by the nsurer to discharge gratuity liabilities ta the employ=es.

Shart-term and other long-term employea benefits

A liahikty is recognized for benefits acoruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave 0 the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amaunt of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

tiabilities recognized in respect of shart term employes benafits are measured at the undiscounted @mount of the benefits expected ta be paid in exchange
for the related service.

Liabllities recognized in respect of ather fong term employee henefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to
he made by the Company In respect of services provided by emaloyees up ta the reporting date.

i} Defined Contzibution Plans
Employee defined contribution plans include provident fund and Employee state insurance.

Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance:

All employees of the Company receive benelits from Provident fund and Employee’s State Insurance, which are defined cantribution plans. Both, the
employee and the Company make monthly contributions te the plan, each equaling 1o a specified percentage of employee’s applicable emoluments, The
Company has no further ohligations under the plan beyond its menthly contributicns. The Company contributes te the Employee Provident Fund and
Employee's State Insuranca scheme maintained by the Central Government of India and the cantribution thereaf is charged to the Statement of Profit and
Lass in the year in which the services are rendered by the employees.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortizatian of andillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency berrawings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the nterest cost. Casis In cannection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not directly related to the acquisition
of qualifying assets are charged lo the Statement af Profit and Loss over the tenure of the lvan. Borrewing costs, allocated to and utilized for qualifying
assets, pertaining to the period fram commencement of activites relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the date of
capitalizatian of such asset are added to the cost of the assets. Capitalization of borrowing tosts is suspended and charged to the Statament of Profit and
Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is interrupred.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on gualifying assets Ts deductad from the barrowing
costs eligtble for capitalization,

All pther horrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period e which they are incurred.

Grants, and Export ) i

Goverament grants and subsidies are recognized when there is reasonzble assursnce that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to them
and the grants / subsidies will be received. Government grants whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or atherwise
acquire capital asseis are presented by deducting them from the careying value of the assets. The grant is recognized as income over the life of @
deprecizhle asset by way of a reduted depree|ation charge.

Export benefits, Tf any, are aceounted far in the year of exports based on 2ligibility and when there is no uncertainty In recaiving the same
Government grants in the pature of promoters' contribution like investment subsidy, where no repayment is orditarily expected in respect thereof, are
accounted in Reserves and Surpius in Other Equity. Government grants in the form of non-manetary assets, given at a concessional rate, are recorded on

the basis of their acquisition cost. In case the non-monetary asset is given free of cost, the grant is recorded at a nominal valus.

Other government grants and subsidies are recognized as income over the perieds necessary te match them with the costs for which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic asis.
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Segment Reporting

Operating segments reflect the Company's management structure and the way the financial information is regularly revlewed by the Company's Chief
operating decision maker (CODM). The: CODM considers the Susiness from both business and product perspective based on the deminant source, nature of
risks and returns and the internal organization and management structure. The operating segments are the segments far which separate financial
infarmation is available and for which operating profit / {loss) amaunts are evaluated regularly by the executive Management in deciding how to allocate
resaurces and in assessing performance.

The accounting pollcies adepted for segment reperting are In line with the accaunting policies of the Company, Segment revenue, segment expenses,
segrnent assets and segment Habilities have keen identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Inter-segment revenue, where apglicahie, is accounted on the basts of transactions which are primarily datermined based on market / fair value fattors.

Revenus, expenses, assets and fiabilities which relate to the Company as a whole and are not allacable to segments on reasanable basis are included under
“unallocated revenue f expenses f assets / labilities”.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classas consists of lzases for bulldings and medical equipments, The Company, &t the inception of a contract, assesses whether
the contract Is a lease or not lease, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right t control the use of an identified asset for a time In
exchange for a consideratian. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entesed inta on or after 1 April 2019.

The Company recognises a right-ol-use asset and a |ease liability at the lease commencement date, The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or befare the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remave the underlylng asset or ta restore the undeslying 2sset or the site on which it is located,
less any lease incentives received

The right-of-use asset Is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date ta the end of the |ease term

The iease liahility is initlally measured at the present velue of the |ease payments that are nat paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
Campany's incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there fs 3 change In future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, Ti there
is a change in the Sompany's astimale of the amount expected to be payabla under a residual value guarantee, or 7f the Campany changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension ar terminztion option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying ameount of the right-of-use assel, ar is recorded in profit or loss if the carrylng amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero,

The Campany has elected not to recegnise right-of-use assets and lease liabi s for short-term Jeases that have a lease term of 12 months or l=ss and
eases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lzase payments associsted with these |eases as an expense over the lazse term.

Earnings Per Share
Rasic earnings per share is computed vsing the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted EFS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also
waighted aversge number af equity shares that could have been issued upon canversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

FPotential equity shares are ¢eemed to be dilutive only if their conversian to equity shares would decrease earnings per share fram continuing operations.
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemerd converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a fater date. The dilutive potential equity shares
are adjusted for the praceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value {i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive
potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentialiy dilutive equity shares are
adjusted for share sglits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on Incoma

Income tax expense represenis the sim of the tax currently payabie and defarred tax,
Current tax expense for the year is ascertained an the basis of assessable profits computed in accardance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

Minimum Alternate Tax [MAT) paid as current tax expense In accordance with the tax {aws, which gives future economic berefits in the form of zd|ustment
to future income tax liahility, is considered as tax cradii and recogrized as deferred tax asset when there is reasanable certainty that the Company will pay
narmal income X in the future years and future ecenamic benefit associated with it will flow to the Campany. The carrying amount is reviewed at the end
of each reporting periad and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prabable that sufficient taxable profits will be availatie ta allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferrad tax is i on iff between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the Financlal Statements and the
corresponding tax hases used in the mmpulamnn of taxabla profit. Deferred tak liahilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporacy diffarences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is prabable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temparary differencas can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabillties are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises fram the jnitial recogrition {other than [n 2 business combiration) of assets and lizbillties in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting prafit.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets s reviewed at the end of each reporting perind znd reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be availzble ta allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax liabilties and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to applyin the peried Tn which the Jiabitiy is settled or the asset realized,
based ontax rates {and tax faws) that have bean enacted or substantively enacted by the end af the reporting period.

The measurament of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequerices that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recaver or settle tha carrying amount of its assets and lizbilities.
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Provistans, Cantingant Liabilitles and Cantingent Assets

A provision is recognized when the Company has 2 present obligation {legal or constructive] as a result of past events and it is prabable that an autflow of
resaurces will be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a relizble estimate can be made. Provisions are determined based on the best
astimate required to settle the cbligation at the balance sheet date and measured using the present value of cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligations [when the effect of ime value of money |s material}. These are reviswed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimatas,

Contingent lfability s disclosed for

(i} Possible ehligations which will be confirmed only by future events nat wholly within the contral of the Company or

fii) Prasent obfigations arfsing fram past evenLs where it is not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the cbligation or o reliable
estimate of the amount of the chligation cannot be made.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financlal Statements. Comtingent assets ave only disclosed when itis
prabable that the economic benefits will low to the entity.

Insurange claims

Insurance clzims are sccounted for on the basis of claims admitted 7 expected 10 be admitted and to the extent that the smount recoverable can be
measured reliably and it is rezsonakle to expect ultimate collection.

Finandal Instrumeants

Initial Recognitios

Financial assets and financiz) fiabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party Lo the contractual provisions of the instrument. Fingncial assets
and liabifities are Inftially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
lizbillties {other than financial assets and finandial Habilities at fafr value through profil or loss [FYTPL)) are added to or deducted drom the fair value
measurad or initial recognition of financial asset ar financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets and
finanelal flabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Financial Assets
ia) ition and initial

{i} The Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits and subordinated fiabilities on the date on which they originate. All other {inanciat
instruments {Including regular way purchases and sales of financlal asssts} are recognized an the trade date, which is the date on which the Company
Becomes a party to the contrectual provisions of the instrument._ A financial asset or liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item net at FVTPL,
transaction £osts that are directly attributable to its acguisitien or issue.

{b} Classifi

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classiied to be measured at amortized cost, fair value through ather comprehensive income [FYTOCIH) ar FYTPL.

ion of financial assets

A finandzl asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated at FYTPL:

= The asset is heid within a business model whose objective is to hold assets 1o callect contractual cash flows; and

= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are salely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amaount outstanding.

Far the impairment pollcy in financial assets measured at amartized tost, refer Note 3.27.1 {e)

A debt instrument is classifled as FYTOC! only If it meets both of the following conditions and is not recognized at FYTPL:

= The asset s held within a business model whese objective is achieved by bath collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

 The contractual terms of the financial asset pive rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

All cther financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
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(c] Effective interest method

The effective Interest method is a methad of calcutating the amortized cost of @ debt instrument and of aliccating Intesest income over the relevant pericd.
The effective interast rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees and pofnts pafd or recejved that form an
integral part of the effective Interest rate, ransaction costs and pther premfums ar discounts) through the expected llfe of the debt instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amaunt en initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective Interest hasis for debt instruments other than those financial asseis classified as at FUTPL Interest inceme is
recognized in profit ortoss #nd i included Tn the "Other tncome® fine item.

{d] Finanelal assats at falr value through profit or loss (FyTPL)

Debt instruments that do nat meet the amortized cost criteria or FYTQC criteria [see above} are measured at FYTPL In addition, debt instruments that
meet the amortized cost criteria or the FYTOCH criteria but are designated as at FYTPL are messured at FVTPL

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the F¥TOC! criteria may be designated as at FYTPL ugon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates ar sfgnificantly reduces 3 measurement or recognition inconsistency that wauld arise from measuring assets or
fiabllities ar recognizing the gains and iosses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrurment as at FYIPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end af each reporting pericd, with any gains or lesses arising on remeasurement recogrized in
profit or loss. The net galn or loss recoghized in profiz or loss incorporates any dividend or [nterest earned on the financial asset and is included in the 'Other
incame' line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probabte that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will Aow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recavery of part of cost of the investment and
the amount of dividend can be measured reliabiy,

[e} iImpairment of finangial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment Joss an financial assets measured ai amortized cast, debt instruments at
FVTOC, trade receivables and other contractual rights to recelve cash or other financial assat,

Expected credlt losses are the weighted average of credit iosses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit ipss is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
fie. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate [or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credil-
impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash fows by considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment,
extension, call and similar aptions) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measuses the loss allowance for a financial Instrument at an amount equal to the fifetime expected credit [osses if the credit risk an that
financial instrument has increased slgrificantiy since initial recognition. if the credit risk on a financlal instrument kas not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. I2-menth
expected credit Tosses are partion of the lifz-time expacted credit losses and rapresent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the
12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted aver the next 12 months.

Fur trade receivables, the Company aiways measures the loss zllowance 2t an amaunt aqual to lifetinre expected cradit fosses. Further, for the purpese of
measuring lifetime expected credit loss aflowance far trade receivaties, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This
expected credit loss allowance is camputed based on a proviskon matrix which takes Into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted fer forward-
taoking information.

[#} Derecogmition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financfal asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownershig of the asset to ancther party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of awnership and conti o contral the asset, the Campany recognizes its retained interest In the asset and an assodated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. if the Company retalns substantially afl the risks and rewards of awrership of 2 transferred finencial asset, the Company
contlnues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes 2 collateralized borrowing for the proceeds reteived.

On derecognition of a financizl asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or ioss that had heen racognizad In other comprak incame and acc in equity is recognized in profit or
Toss if such gakn or loss would have otherwise been recognized in prafit or lass on disposal of that financial asset.

£ derecognition of 3 financial asset other than in its entirety [e. g when the Company retains an eptien to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amaunt of the financial asset betwaen the part It conlinues Lo recognize under continuing invelvement, and the
part it no langer recognizes oo the basis of the rafative fair values of thase parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
alincated to the part that is no longer recognized and the sum of the consideration received for the part ra longer recognized and any cumulative gain or
Ioss aliocated to it that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or foss if such gain ar foss wauld have otherwise been
recognized in profit or lass on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been izad in other c ive ncome is
allocated between the part that continues te be recognized and the part that s no longer recognized on the basts of the relative fair values of those parts.
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[g) Foreign exchange gains and losses

The fair value of financiz} assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each
raporting period.

+ Far foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortized cest and FVTPL, the exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.

» Changes in carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FYTOCI relating to changes In forelgn currency rates are recognized I other
romprehensive income.

« For the purposes af recognizing foreign exchange gains or losses, FVTOCT debt instrumants are treated as financial assets measured at amartized cost.
Thus, the axchange differences on the amartized cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and ather changes in the fair valve of FVTCCI
financial assets are recagnized in other comprehensive incame.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS
{a) Classiflcaticn as debt or equity:

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are tlassified accarding to the substance of the contractuzl arrargements entered Into
and the definftions af a financial fiability and an equity instrument,

{P) Equity instrureents:

An equity instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting ali of its liabilities. Eguily Instruments
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue tosts. Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognized and deducted direetly
n equity. Ko gain ar loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

(¢} Finaneial Liabilities at FYTPL:
Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading o itis designated as 2t FVTPL.

Afinancial [labflity is classified as held for trading if:

= it has been Tncurred principally for the purpose af repurchasing it in the near term; or

« an initizl recognition it is part of a portfolio of identiffied financial instruments that the Campany manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term prefit-taking;

A financial liability other than a finencial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition i

« such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incansistency that would otherwise arise; ar

» the financizl liability forms part of @ group of financial assets or financial liab| ities or bath, which |s mansged and its performance is evaluated on 5 fair
value basis, in accordance with the Company's doc risk mar it or i stratepy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis;

at ized cost:

(d} Financial Ii

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amartized £ost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial lfrabilities that are subsequently measured at amertized cost are determinad based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is nat capitalized as part of casts of an asset ks Included in the "finance costs’ ne trem.

The effective interest methad [s a method of calculating the amortized cast of a financial liabflity and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exaclly discounts estimated future cash payments {including ail fees and points paid or received that farm
an integral part of the efective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or
{where appropriate) a shorter pariod, te the net carrying amount on nitizl recognition.

[e} Foreign exchange gains and losses:
Far financial lizbiliies that are denominated in a foreign currency and measured at amartized cost at the and of each reporting perind, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined baserd on amortized cost of the instruments and are recognized in the Statement of Praofit and Loss.

The fair value of the financial Fabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and transfated at the spot rate at the end
of the reporting perlod. For financial liabilities that are measured at FYTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses
recognized in Lhe Statement of profii and Lass.

() Derecopnition of financiak liabilities:

The Company deracognizes financial liabillties when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
setween the carrylng smount of the finencial Hability deretognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes to the dal Flnancial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

3.28 Goods & Serlvce Tax Input Credit

Goods & Serivee Tax Input Credit is accounted for In the books during the period in which the underlying service received Is accounted and where there is
na uncertainty in availing/utilizing the same.

3.2% Exceptlonal ltems

Exceptional items are items of income and expenses which are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate distlosure Is relevant 1o explain the
parformance of the Company.

3.30 Share Based Payments :
During the year the Company had introdured the employee stock option scheme. Under the plan, the empioyees and dectors of the Company and its
subsidaivies are granted shares and other stack awards of the Company, in zccordance wilh Lhe terms and conditions as specified in the plan. The plan is
assessed, managed and administered by the Company, whose shares and share based benefits have been grarted to the employees and doctors of the
Company. The Company currently operates the plan / scheme of employee stock aption ["ESOPY] and a share appreciation rights ("5AR"). The Company has
accounted for the amount of expense under Ind AS 102 considering the invoice received from the holding company taking into account the valuation
carried out in respect of the same and has made the refated disclesures required under INDAS 102 based on information obtained from the holding
company {Refer Note 43]

ESOPs:
Equity settled share based payments to the employees of the company are maasured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the prant date.

Campensatien expense for the Employes Stock Optian Plan ("ESOP”) is measured at the optfon value s on grent date and the cost of the option will be
amortised on a systematic basls which reflects pattern of the vesting of the options over the period of 4 years.

SARs:

Cash settled share based payments to the doctors of the company is remeasured at the value of option at the end of every reparting perigd. Compensation
expense for the Share Appreciation Rights {*SAR”} will be accounted at evary reparting date tll the date of exercise of the 5ARs based an the information
pravided by the holding company {Refer Note 43.4),

a4 Lritical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires e make ji estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amaunts of assets, lisbilities, income and expenses and the accompanying disclasures. Uncertainty
about the assumptions and estimates rould result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carmying value of assets or liabilities affected in
future periads.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the perfod in whith the
estimates are revised and future periods are affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting polcies that have the most
significant effect on the amaunts recogrized in the financial statements are included in the following notes:

(i) Useful livas of Property, plant and equipment {Refer Note 3.9}

{ii} Useful lives of intangible assets {Refer Note 3.11)

[iii} Assets and obligations refating te emaloyee beneflts {Refer Note 3.18)

[iv) Valuation and measurement of income taxes and deferred taxes {Refer Note .24}

[v) Provisions for disputed statutary and other matters (Refer Note 3.25)

{vi] Valuatian of Goodwill and intangible asstes on business combinations (Refer Note 3.8)
{wil} Impairment of Geodwill {Refer Note 3.10)

{vili) Allowanee for expected credit |osses {Refer Note 3.27.1(e))

{ix] Fair value of Financial Assets and Lizhilities {Refer Note 3.27.1 and 3.27.2)

{x) Lease Term of Leases entered by the Company (Refer Note 3.22)

Determinaticn of functional currency:
Currency of the grimary economic envirgnment in which the Company operates | "the functional currency”} is Indian Rupee [INR} [n which the company
primarily generetes and exgends cash. Accordingly, the Management has z5sessed its functional currency to be indian Rupee {INR).
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Dr, Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notas forming part of the Standal,

Financia Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

6

6.1

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars
2023 2022
Carrylog amaunts of:
Right-of-use assets 260.52 130.25
Total 260.52 130.25
Details of movemnent in the carrying amaunts of right-of-use assets
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Description of Assets Medical Equipments Ewildings Leaseheid land Total
1- Gross carrying value
As at 1 April 2021 392 145.51 T1.50 22693
Additions - 39.58 - 39.98
Dispossls / Adjustments during the year = {1.89) [77.50] (79.39]
As at 31st March 2022 3492 183.60 - 187.52
As at 1 April 2022 3.92 183.60 = 187.52
Additions 2.25 162.38 164.63
Acquisitions through business combinations (Refer - -
Note 7.3.1}
Disposals / Adjustments during the year = {1.22) {122)
As at 31st March 2023 6.17 344.76 S 350,93
1l. Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 196 34.23 2.67 38.86
Charge for tha year 0.40 2125 1.24 22.8%
Disposals / Adjustments during the year & {0.57) {3.91) (4.48)
As at 315t March 2022 236 54.91 - 57.27
As at 1 Aprif 2022 2.36 54091 = 57.27
Charge for the year 045 32.36 - 3281
Disposals / Adjustments during the year - 0.33 - 0,33
As at 315t March 2023 2.81 B7.60 - 90.41
et carrying value as at 31st March 2023 336 257.16 - 260.52
Net carrying value as at 31st March 2022 1.56 128.69 - 130.25




Dr. Agarwat's Health Care Limited

Notes forming part of the dal Financfal Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Amount ir Rs. Crares]

Particulars As at 3lst March As at 31st March
2023 2022
Carrying amounts of

Goodwlll 216.21 90,23
Subtotal - Goodwill [A) 216.21 90.23
Trademarks 0.01 Dot
Computer suftware 0.24 0.64
Customer Relationship 19.56 278
MNon Compete Agreament 194.69 2877
| | - Other Intangiblas {B) 212.50 32,20

Intangibles under devel {C) - =
Grand Fotal {A+B+C] 430.71 122,43

7.1 Betails of movement in the carrying amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets
{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Description of Assets Goodwill Tradernarks Computer Cust-nmer. Non:ompete Total
Software | Aelationship| Agreement

1. Gross carrying value
Asat 1 April 2021 68.01 .04 533 3.42 28.26 105.07
Additions 22.22 - 0.18 2.09 21.46 45.95
Additions through business combination - - - - - -
Disposals / Deletions during the year = - = = £ =
As at 31st March 2022 90.23 0,04 551 5.52 49.72 151.02
As at 1 April 2022 9g.23 004 5.51 5.52 42.72 151.02
Additions - E Q.15 = 213 2.28
Additions through business combination {Refer 125.98 - - 19.64 19391 339,53
Note 7.3.1}
Disposals / Deletions during the year - - - = - -
As at 31st March 2023 216.21 0.04 5.66 25.16 245.76 492,83

Il. Actumnulated amortization and impairment
As at 1 April 2021 = Q.02 3.85 182 9,92 15.68
Amortization charge for the year = .ol 1.02 076 742 2.21
Disposals / Qeletlons durfng the year - - - - B =
tmpairment loss for the year 2 - - 0.6 3.54 370
As at 335t March 2022 = 003 4,87 274 2095 28.59
As at 1 April 2022 > 0.03 487 274 20.85 28.59
Amartization charge for the year - = .55 2.86 30.12 33.53
Disposals / Deletions during the year - P © 3 5 =
As at 31st March 2023 - 0.03 5.42 5.60 51.07 62.12

Net carrylng value as at 31st March 2023 216.21 0.01 .24 1956 194.69 430,71

Net carsying value as at 31st March 2022 90.23 0.01 0.64 273 28.77 122,43

7.2 Breakup of Goadwill
{Amount in Rs, Crores)
. . . As at 31stMarch | Asat 31st March
Partigulars of Cash Generating Unit TTrel 2002

Hospital at Nellore 0.45 0.45

Hospital at Hyderabad 0.05 0.05

Hospital at Guntur 0.40 0.40

Hospital at fune (1} 12.24 12.24

Hosgital at Benpakuru (1) 2.37 237

Hospital at Bengaturu (2} 16.76 16.76

Hosaital at indore 9.30 9.30

Hespital at Mumbai {1} 4.28 4.28

Hospltal at Calmbatore .10 4.10

Hospftal at Naskik 14.28 14.28

Hospital at Vijayawada 4.52 4.52

Hospital at Pune [2) 3.32 3.32

Hospital at Mumbai {2) 22,16 2216

Hospital at Pune (3) 3.05 9

Hospital ag Punjab 4,00 -

Hospital at Mohati 5.81 -

Hospital at Panchkula 344 =

Hospital at Pune {4) 633 -

Hospital at Mad. i 0.57

Hospital at Bhavnagar 393 -

Haspital at Surat 13.09 -

Haspital at Vapi 194 -

Haospital at Jamriu 592 -

Hospital at Mumbai {3) 23.22 -

Haspital at Satara 008 2

Huospital at Davanagere 8.69 -

Hospita! at Mumbai (4] 711 -

Hospitai at Madurai 38.79 =

Total 216.21 90.23

Note : As on 31 March 2023, Goedwill balances have been tested for imgalrment and no provision required to be recarded in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36.
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the 1 Fimanclal for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

8 INVESTMENTS
{Amount in Rs. Crares}
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Non-current, at cost
fa)  Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Guoted, at Cost
Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited (Refer Nete (1) below)

As at 31 March 2023 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 33.92 33.92
As at 31 March 2022 - 3,372,408 Shares of Rs. 10 each fully pald
{h)  Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Unquoted, at Cost
Orbit Healthcare Services [Mauritius) Umited [Refer Note {ii} below)
As 31 31 March 2023 - 617,894,737 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 0.57 each fully paid 2367 83.67

- - 64,426,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid
As at 31 March 2022 - 617,894,737 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 0,57 each fully paid
- -64,426,001 Ordinary Shares of MUR. 1 each fully paid
[{u] Investmant In Equity Instruments of Assaciate - Unguoted, at Cost
[deaRx Services Private Limited [Refer Note (i) below)]

As at 31 March 2023 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid 2.01 2.01
As at 31 March 2022 - 49,254 Equity Shares of Rs. 1 each fully paid
{d)  Investmentin Eguity Instrurnents of Subsidiary - Unquated, at Cast
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited { Refer Note {iv) below} 1.81 181

As at 31 March 2023 - 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

As at 31 March 2022- 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fuily paid

{e} {nvestment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary - Unguated, at Cost 32.25 26.00
Aditya lyot Eye Hospital (P} Ltd. { Refer Note (v] below)

As at 31 Mareh 2023 - 215,062 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid

As at 31 March 2022 - 173,410 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid

Total 153.66 147.41
Notes:

{i] The Company had entered into 2 Share Purchase Agreemeant dated 11 January 2011, with the promoters of Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [DAEHL) to purchase
2,472,408 Equity Shares of DAEHL, comgrising 54.9424% of the total Equity Share Capital of DAEHL, for which the Company praposed to lssue Eguity Shares of fs. 10
sach of the Company as consideration in the ratia of 1 Share of the Company for every .12 Shares of DATHL.

Pursuant ta the same, during the vear ended 31 March 2012, in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeavers)
Regulations, 1397, the Company had acquired 500,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ibeing 20% of the total share capital of DAEHL} at a price of Rs. 159 per Equity Share
through Open Offer to the shareholders of BAEHL for a total consideration of Rs. 14.31 Crores.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, post completion of the open offer, the Company had acquired 2,472,408 shares from the promotars of DAEHL in the month of
April 2012 at the agreed price of Rs. 79.33 per Equity Share for a totat censideration of Rs. 19.61 Crores and as a result therzof, DAEHL became the subsidiary of the
Company with effect from 2 April 201Z. The Company discharged the consideration by way allotting 792,089 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each {at a premium of Rs. 237.6188
per Equity Share} of the Company to the promoters of DAEHL at its Bosrd Meeting held on 26 April 2012. The premium on these Equity Shares amounting to Rs. 18.82
Crores was credited to the securities premium account.

As at 31 March 2023, the Campany is holding 71.7534%, of the total Equity Share Capital of DAEHL.

tii} During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has acquired 1 ordinary shares of MUR 1 each, of Orhit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limited, from
Internaticnai Securities Limited an 10 January 2017 for a nil consideratien. The Company alsa subscribed to additional 300,000 Ordinary Shares of MUR 1 each for Rs.
0.02 Crares on 9 February 2017. The same has been approved in the Shareholders meeting held an 2 lanuary 2017.

During the periad ended 31 March 2018, the Company has subscribed to 54,326,000 ordinary shares of MUR I each in various tranches for Rs. 12.57 Crores and the
sarme has been allotted.

Further, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had subscribed to 617,894,737 ordinary shares of MUR 0.57 each for Rs. 70.74 Crores and the same was
allotted on 21 March 2019.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is holding 100% of the total equity share capital of Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limited.

{iii} Pursuant to an investment agreement dated 12 January 2017 entered into by the Company with the promoters of Idearx Services Private Limited ['ldear<'} and
\dearx, the Company has purchased 49,254 shares of Rs. 1 each {at a premium of Rs. 407.09 each} for Rs. 2,01 Crores approved in ts general meeting held on 2 January
2017,

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is holding 14.71% of the total equity share capital of Idearx Services Private Limited

{iv) Pursuant to the Board Resolution datec 03 September 2019, the Board has approved the transfer of Elisar Research and Development undertaking of the Company
to Elisar Lifesciences Private Limited, for a consideration of 18,05,618 Equity Shares of Rs. 1¢ each and Face value of Rs.10 each amouting to Rs. 1.B1 Crores.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company is halding 76% of the total equity share eapital of Elisar Lifesciences Private Limited

{v) Pursuant to the Share purchase agreement dated 08 October 2021 entered into by the Company with the promoters of Aditya Iyot Eye Hospital Private Limited
{*AIEHPL') and AJEHPL, the Company has entered into the share purchsse agreement of 3,40,020 sharas of Rs. 100 each {at a premium of Rs.1400 each).

As at 31 March 2023, the Company s holding 63.25% of the total equity share capital of Adityz Jyot Eye Hespital Private Limited.

As at 31 March 2022, the Company was hotding 51% of the tots| equity share capital of Aditya Jyot Eye Hospital Private Limited.

[Amount in Rs. Crores!
Particulars As at_Iist March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

(a)  Aggregate book value of guoted investments 3392 33.92
Aggregate market value of guoted investments 308.68 746.51
{b)  Aggregate book value of unguoted investments 119.74 113.49




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Motes forming part of the lal Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

9{A} Loans

[Amount in Rs, Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Non-current, at amartized cost
(2} Loans ta related parties, Unsecured (Refer Note 38 & Note 16 and notes below)

- Considered gead and recaverable 1.89 21.08

- Considered doubtful 2501 3.08

Less : Provisian for doubttul loans and advances [25.01) (3.09)

Total 1.89 21.08
Motes:

(i) Pursuant ta the Board resciution dated 31 May 2021, the Company has converted its outstanding short term [oans into long term loans granted to Elisar Life Sciences
Private Limited {Elisar). The management carried out an impairment analysis of carrying value of investments as at 31 March 2023 INR 1.81 crores {as of 31 March 2022
INR 1.81 crores) as well as loan as of 31 March 2023 INR 26.09 crores and accrued interest of INR 7.29 crores {loan 3s of 31 March 2022 INR 24.17 crores and accrued
interest of INR 4.11 crares) given ta Elisar using the discounted cash flow method. Based on impairment assessment, management has recognised a provision as of 31
March 2023 INR 32.30 crores {as of 31 March 2022 INR 3.08 crores) against the outstanding loan balance, The additional provision of Rs. 29.20 crores made during the
currént year has been recognised in the Statement of Profit and Lass and disclosed as an exceptienal itern.

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As ak 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Non - current

Due from private company in which director of the Cormpany is a director In the private company 1.89 21.08
9(B} Other financial assets
[Amount in Rs. Crores]
Particulars As at 315t March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Non-current, at amortized cost
(a} Rental Ceposits
-Others 17.00 1L57
(b} Security deposits 0.59 0.79
Total 172.59 12.36
10 OTHER ASSETS (Unsecured, Considered good)
[Amount in Bs, Crores}
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As ab 31st March 2022
Other non-current assets
{a}  Capital Advances 4.36 2.21
Total 4.36 2.2%
Other current assets
{a) Prepaid Expenses 4.37 1L4G
{b)  Advances to Suppliers 0.93 172
{c) Employee Advances 0.01 002
[d)  Batances with Government Authorities
- Input Credit Receivables 1.77 3.60
[e)  Prepaid share issye expenses (refer note below) & 1.16
Total 713 730
Note:

During the year ended 21 March 2022, the compzny incurred an amount of INR 1.16 crores towards fund raise which gat concluded in FY2022.23. This amoun

issue expenses is adjusted against security premium in the FY 2022-23

11 INVEMNTORIES (at lower of cost and net realizable value)

t 15 shown as prepaid share

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

{a)  Traded Goods

realizable value

- Opticals 5.80 4.55
- Pharmaceutical Products 4.72 2.81
- Contact Lens and Accessories 139 0.70
{b)  Consumables (goods held for use in rendering services) B.3B BO7
c) Clinical items and Equipments held for trading .04 1.38
Tatal 20.33 17.51
Notes:
tAmount in Rs. Cmrgﬂ_|
For the Year ended 31st
Sl No Particulars For the Year ended 31st March 2023 March 2022
1 |The cost of inventaries recognized as an expense during the year 146.76 91.39
2 |The cost of iny iesr asan exp inciudes write downs of inventory to net 012 .37




Pr. Aparwal's Heafth Care Limited

for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

Notes farming part of the Standalone Financial

8 (B) INVESTMENTS - CURRENT

[Amount in Rs. Crares)

Particedars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

(i} SBI Liquid Fund growth

As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

(i} Sundaram Liquid Fund

As at 31 March 2022 - Nil

{iv}) HSBC Overnlght Fund - Direct growth

As at 31 March 2022 - NIl

Current Investments - carried at Fair Value through Profit & Loss

fa)  Investments in Mutual Funds {quoted, fully paid-up)

As at 31 March 2023 - 29,136 units @ 3,523.20 NAV per unit

(i) tnvesco India Uitra Short Term Fund - Direct Plan Growth (MT-D1)
As at 31 March 2023 - 1,494 units @ 2,435.78 NAV per unit

Asat 31 March 2023 - 50,487 units & 1,986.65 NAV per unit

As at 31 March 2023 - 110,844 units @ 1,173.46 NAV per unit

10.27

0.36

10.03

13.00

Total

33.66

{Amount In Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

{a) Aggregate haok value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments

33.66
33.66




Dr. Agarwal's Heafth Care Limited
Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2022

12 INCOME TAX

121 Non-current incame tax assets

[Amount in Rs. Crores}

T Asat 3IstMarch | Asat 31stMarch
2023 2022
Income tax payments made against returns filed fdemands received [including taxes deducted at source) 28.39 17.49
Tax Refund receivable (net} 23.39 1749
122 Income tax expense
{Amount in As. Crores)
Particulars As at F1st March As at 31st March
2023 2022
{A.1] Income Tax recognized in statement of profit and loss
{i} Current Tax:
- in respect of current year 1.57 -
Total (A} 1.57 8
{if) Deferred Tax:
-In respect of current year {39.00) 0.52
Tatal {B) {29.00) 0.52
Total income tax expense recognized in profit and loss account (A+E) (32.43) 0.52
[A.3) Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s domestic tax rate:
Profit / {Less) before tax after exceptional items {5.84) (0.95)
Income Tax using the Company's domestic Tax rate {1.47) (0.24)
Tax Effect of :
- adjusiment o tax impact of exceptional items {5.44)
- Adjustment towards recognition of deferred tax asset an brought forward losses and depreciation 2812 (5.41)
-~ Reversal of deferred tax Including MAT credit refating to AEIPL, merged entity - 052
- Deferrad Tax Credit not recognized till FY 22 and recognised In current year (Refer Note 13.2) {57.39} 5.65
- Effect of expenses that are non-deductible in determining taxakle profit 3.03 -
- Cthers (4.23] -
Tax expense recognized in aof profit or loss fram operations (37.43} 0.52

The tax rate used for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 reconciliatians above are the corporate tax rate of 25 17% payable by carporate entities in India on

taxable profits under Indian Income Tax Laws.




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited
Notes forming part of the dal

13 DEFERRED TAXES

13.1 Deferred Tax Balances

Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2623

Amount in Rs. Crores]

Particulars

As at 31st March
2023

As at 31st March
2022

The following is the analysis of the net deferred tax asset/ {liability] position as presented in the financial statements

Deferred tax assets 33.00 -
Deferred tax labilities - -
Net Deferrad tax Liabilities 33.00 2

13.2 Movement in Deferred Tax Balances

A. Far the Year Ended 31st March 2023

Charge/{Credit] recagnized in

Amaurt in As. Cruresf

1 Apri ha: As at 315t March
Particulars AETEE T il Statement of o=t .| Directlyin Other A s
2022 Comprehensi k 2
Profit and Loss Equity
ve Income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets / [deferred tax liabilities)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangtble Assets l.00 5.05 = - 6.05
Employea Bensfits 077 0.71 - 148
Provision for Contingency 0.02 - - - 0.02
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 3.44 115 3 = 4.59
Brought Forward Loss and Unabsorked Depreciation 4593 (28.12) & . 17.87
Valuation of Investments - - = ]
Qther ftems 4.4% {1.24) = 3.25
Lessa assets net of lease fabillties 168 4.05 = 5.73
Less: Valuation Allawance (57.40) 57.40 - - -
Other items [0.23) 0.25 - = -
MAT Credit 0.25 10.25) 3 - -
Net Tax Asset [[Liabilities) 0.0¢ 39.00 - - 39.00
B, For the Year Ended 31 March 2022
Amaurt in Rs. Crores)
Charge/{CredIt) recognized in
As As at 31st V)
Particulars atlipl | o ementor | OT | heociiyin Other # Ll
2021 Comprehensi 2022
Profit and Loss Equity
ve Income
iTax effect of iterns constituting deferred tax assets / [deferred tax fiahbilitias)
Proparty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets 3.73 (2.73) - 1.00
Employee Benefits 0.55 0.21 & S 077
Provisian for Contingency 0.02 - - - 0.02
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 211 133 - - 344
Brought Forward Loss and Unabsorbed Depreciation 40.04 5.96 = = 45.99
Valuatien of Investments - o 5 N -
Other itetms 3.61 0.88 = e 4.49
Lease assets net of |ease liabilities 1.68 = 1.68
Less: Valuation Allowance {51.75} {5.65) - - (57.20)
Other items 027 {0.52} {0.25)
MAT Credit 0.25 = 0.25
MNet Tax Asset /(Liabilities} 0.52 (0.52) J E 0.00

Notes

The Company has taxable profits during the year and basis the projections and perfarmance of the Company there is reasanable certainty with convincing evidence af
utilizing all the brought forward losses/depreciation in next 2 years. Considering the same, the Company had recognized Deferred Tax Asset during the year amounting to Rs.

39.00 crores [net).




Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Notes forming patt of the dalone Financial Statel for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
14  TRADE RECEIVABLES
{Amgunt in Rs. Crores)
Particatars As at 31stMarch | As at 31st March
2023 2022
Current
(2} Undisputed Trade Receivables -Considered good 57.86 44.21
"Allowance for daubtful debts - considered good (18.24) {13.68]
[b) Undisputed Trade Recsivables -Considered doubtful = -
‘Allewance for doubtful debts - considered doubttul - .
[c) Disputed Trade Receivahies - Considered good g c
[d) Disputed Trade Receivables Considered doubtful - B
Total 39.72 30.53
As at Iist March 2023 {Amount in Rs, Crares)
Particulars
8|6 ths -
LEsSithan] manthEs] . Zyears | 2-3years | Mare than 2 years Total
months 1year
[2) Undisputed Trade Receivables -Cansidered good 33.03 12.24 8.61 225 1.83 57.96
'Allowance for doubtful debts - cansidered good {5.45) {3.86) {5.08) [2.01} {1.83) [18.24)
(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk = - - - - -
{c) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - = - - -
{d) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considered gaad = - - - - -
(e} Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - =
(f) Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 27.58 8.38 3.52 0.24 0.00 39.72
As at 31st March 2022 [Amount in Rs. Crores]
Particulars Lass than 6 | & menths -
5 - 2
e 1year 1- Zyears | 2-3 years | More than 2 years Total
{a} Undisputed Trade Receivahbles -Considered good 26.48 6.0C 552 4.78 143 44.21
“Allowance for doubtful debts - considered gaod (3.92) (171} {2.89) {3.84) (1.32) {13.68)
(b) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - . - - - -
() Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impalred - - - - - -
(d) Disputed Trade Receivables -Considerad gond - - = - - -
(e} Disputed Trade Recefvables -which have significant increase in credit risk - - - . -
(£ Disputed Trade Receivables -credit impaired - - - L - -
Total 2156 4.29 283 0.94 9.11 30.53

141

14.2

143

Lradit pariod and risk

Significant pertion of the Campany's business is against receipt of advance. Credit is provided mainly to Insurance Companies, Corparate custormers and customers covered by
Gavernment accorded heatth benefits. The Insurance Companies are required to maintain minimum reserve Jevels and pre-approve the insurance claim, Governraent undertakings
and the Corparate Customers are enterprises with high credit ratings. Accordingly, the Company’s exposure to credit risk in relation ta trade receivables is low.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due immediately when the invoice is raised. OF the Trade Receivable as at 31 March 2013, Rs. 31.78 Crores {Asat 31
March 2022: Rs. 18.62 crores) are due from six of the Cempany's customers ie. having more than 5% of the total outstanding trade receivable balance. There are no other
customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recejvables,

Mo trade receivable are due fram directars or ather officers of the Company either severally or jeintly with any ather persen. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or grivate
companies respectively in which any directar is a partner, a director or a member.

Expected credit loss allowance

The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected loss zllowance for trade receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account the
historical credit loss experience 2nd adjustments for ferward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based an the ageing of the days the receivables are due and
the rates as given in the provisian matrix, consigering the amounts due frem the gavernment undertakings and the other undertakings.

Tha provision matrlx at the end of the reparting pericd (31 March 2023} is as fallows:

Expected Credit

Fartlculars Joss (9%)
1-50 days past due 7% to 20%
91-180 days past due 22% to 50%
181-270C days past due 27% ta 59%
271-360 days past due 35% to 60%
361-450 days past due 7% to 300%
451-540 days past due 44% to 100%
541-630 days past due 51% to 100%
630-720 days past due 61% to 100%
720-810 days past due 64% to 100%
Mare than 810 days past due 100%
Movement in the allowance for doubtful r bies {including expected credit loss ail H {Amount in Rs, Crores)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Balance at beginning of the year 13.68 8.38
[Add) Provision Created during the year 6.71 530
[Less) Prevision Utilised during the year [2.15) -
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calcufated at lifetime expected credit losses 4.56 5.30
Balance at end of the year 18.24 13.68

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has written-off trade receivables balances amounting ta Rs. 2.15 crores which are outstanding for mora than 3 years as at 31
March 2023 and have utilised the existing allowances towards expected credit loss. The company does not expect to receive future cash flows/recoveries from trade receivabies
previously written off.
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15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

15 (A) Cash and cash equivalents (Amagunt in Rs. Crores)
Particutars As at 3istMarch| Asat 31st March
2023 2022
[a)  CashonHsnd 0.97 .60
[b)  Balances with Aanks
- In Current Accounts 32.52 15.14
- In Fixed depasits with maturity less than 3 manths 43.32 28.00
Total 76.81 43.74
15{B) Other Bank Balances {Amount in Rs. Crores}
Particulars Asat 31st March | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
fa)  In Fixed Deposits - under Lien 2037 15.76
(b} InEarmarked Escrow Accounts 0.30 0.50
Totak 2067 16.26
Notes:
(i) Reposit under Lien represents deposits placed for Bank Guarantees obtained by the Company
- Customers 1.1¢ 337
- Outstanding Interest Payable to Gebenture Holder {CDC Group PLCY 1077 3.89
- FD marked under Lign - towards acquisition B.50 8.50
Total 20.37 15.76
{ii} Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount depasited in the account specifically earmarked for payment of interest on debentures to the debenture holders (Refer Note
19.1).

16 DOTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Amgunt in Rs. Crores)

Particalars Asat 31stMarch| Asat 31stMarch
2023 2022
Lurrent
fa} Interest accrued
- an fixed deposits 0.46 Q.17
- Others
- Receivabie fram Refated Parties {Refer Note 9{A}} 7.29 411
Less : Pravision for doubtfu! toans and advances (7.29) -
- 4.11
- Regeivable fram Others 0.0z 0.03
(k)  Other receivables from related parties* (Refer Note 18.4 and Note 38) 105 -
[ Rental Deposits
-Others 0.82 2.65
Total 2.35 6.96

Notes:
{1} Other receivables from related parties is the amount which is receivable from its subsidiaried against Employee Stock Option.
{ii} Interest refated to Elisar ioan impaired fully hence the mavement for current year not shawn in the above note, refer note 8 (4).
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17.

in

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31st Mareh 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Particulars
Bumber of shares Rs. in Crores Number of shares Rs. In Crores

Authorised share capital :
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,600,060 7.00 7,000,000 7.00
10% Cumifative Redeemable Non-Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 10,G00,Ge0 10.00 10,000,000 10.60
0.001% Fully and Compulsarily Convertible Cumulative Participative Preference 7,100,0C0 7100 7,100,000 7100
Shares af Rs. 100 each

B8.00 B8.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises:
Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 7,925,103 793 5,859,959 6.86
Totai 7,926,103.00 7.93 6,859,969.00 6.86
Reconcillation of the number of shares and amaunt putstanding at the beginning 2nd at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars

As at_31st March 2023

As at 32st March 2022

Number of shares Rs. In Crores ber of shares Rs. In Crares
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding as at the begianing of the year 6,858,969 a.86 6,852,969 6.86
Add: Fresh issue of shares/adjustment during the year 241,716 0.88 - =
Add: Conversion during the year 124418 0.12 - E
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year 7,926,103 7.93 6,859,969 6.85

Mote

1. Buring the year ended 31st March 2023 the company has Issued fresh issue of shares of 5,36,420 numbers (Face Value of 10 each) to Arven Investments Pte Ltd and
1,45,256 {Face Value of 16 each) numbers to Hyperion Investments Pte.Ltd aggregating to total Equity shares of 9,41,716 nurnbers dated 05th May , 2022

2. Further during the year endad 31st March 2023 ,the Company has allotted 53,024 equity share to the holders of 1,24,301 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares
holders and 71,394 equity shares to hoklars of 1,567,366 shares to all of its Compuisorily Convertible Debentures holders,

Terms / rights attached to Equity Shares :

The Campany has enly ane cfass of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 20. Each helder is entitled to one vote per equity share. Dividends are paid in Indian rupess
Dividend proposad by the Board of Directars, if any, is subject to the zppraval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting except in case of interim dividend.
Repayment of capital will be in accardance with the terms of the Articles of Assoclation and in proportian ta the number of equity shares held.

Details of shares held by each sharehalder holding more than 5% shares
As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Class of Shares Number of Shares | % holding of equity Number of Shares held % halding of equity
held shares shares
Equity shares
{a) Dr. Amar Agarwal 423,350 5.34% 423,350 6.17%
{b} Or. Athiya Aparws| 512,062 5.468% 523,586 7.63%
{c) Dr. Adit Agarwai 418,743 5.28% 511,985 7.46%
{d) Dr. Anosh Agarwal 524,263 661% 524,263 7.64%
fe} Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 6.43% 509,514 7.43%:
[f} Value Growth investment Heldings Pte. Limited - - 2,174,285 31.70%
(g} Or. Anosh Agarwal on hehalf of Dr Agarwal's Eye Institute 366,339 4562% 366,339 5.34%
{h} M/s Claymore Investments (Mauritius) Pte. Ltd. 1,614,815 2037% 1,614,815 23.54%
{l) Hyperion Investments Pte. Ltd 2,590,975 32.89% = 3
{j] Arvan Investment Pte. Lid 754,210 9.52% > 2
TOTAL 7,714,271 97.33% 6,648,137 96.91%
Share holding by promoters
As at 31st March 2023
Class of Shares Number of Shares % holding of equity
held shares
Equity shares
{a} Dr. Amar Agarwal 423,350 5.34%
{b) Dr. Athiya Agarwal 512,062 6,463
(c) Dr. Adil Agarwal A18,743 5,28%
(d] Or. Anosh Agarwal 524,263 6.61%
{e) Dr. Ashvin Agarwal 509,514 6.43%
{f) Or. Ashar Agarwal iF,435 0.21%
(g) Dr Agarwals Eye Institute Private Limited 144,744 1.83%
{h} Farah Agarwal 20,500 0.26%
(1) Urmila Agarwal 20,500 0.26%
(i) Dr. Anosh Agarwal on behalf of Dr Agarwal's Eye Institute 366,339 4.62%
Total 2,956,450 37.30%

Subsequent events [Refer note 19)

As of 10th August 2023, the Company has issued Compulsorily Canvertible Preference shares of Rs. 100 face value for each shares a5 against which Re 1/ collected as share application

maney on 27th July 2023.
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18.2

18.3
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OTHER EQUITY {Amount in Rs. Crores)
particulars — As at 31ist March | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
Securities premium reserve 18.1 756.07 427.23
Retained earnings 18.2 (204.31) (235.22)
Capital redemption reserve 18.3 0.04 0.04
ESOP Reserve 18.4 1.83 =
Total 553.63 192.05
Securities premium
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
’ As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
Particulars
2023 2022
Opening Balance 437.23 427.23
Add : Premium on shares issued/ converted during the year 338,35 =
Less: Application of securities premium for issue of equity shares [9.71) -
Closing Balance 756.07 427.23
Retained earnings
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
. As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
Pariiculars
2023 2022
Opening Batance (235.22) (232.95)
Adjustments
Profit attributable to owners of the Campany 31.59 {1.47)
Add/{Less); Other Comprehensive Income for the year {0.68) {0.80)
Clasing Balance {204.31) [225.22}

Note:

In accordance with Notification G.5.R 404(£), dated & April 2016, remeasuremnent of defined benefit plans is recognized as a part of

retained earnings.

Capital redemption reserve {Amount in Rs. Crores)
. As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
Particulars
2023 2022
Dpening Balance D.04 0.04
Adjustments during the year = E
Closing balance 0.04 0.04

Note : The Company acquired business of AEFPL through acguisiton of it's entire share capital with an appointed date of 1st April

2021. This balance is taken over from such acquisiton made.

ESOP Reserve

(A

mount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2023

Asat 31st March
2022

Opening Balance
Employee stock option expense during the year

1.83

Closing balance

1.83

Note : Amount of Rs, 1.83 crores includes reserve created for the Company of Rs. 0.78 crares and for its subsidiaries of Rs, 1.05

crores. Refer Mote 29 and Note 16
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Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited

Nates forming part of the jalane Financial for the Year Ended 31st March 2023
19 NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
{Amount in Rs. Craras)
Partfeulars As at 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022

Borrowings measured at amaortized cost
Secured Borrowings

i} 2,150 Senior Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Value Rs. 10,00,000 each {Paid Up value - Rs. 133.32 143.45
10,00,000 each) (Refer Note (19.1{a)) below]
i)  Term toans / Others {Refer Note {19.2) below}

- From Banks i32.67 49,71
fii)  Vehicle loans .02 008
(v}  0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 1200 each {Refer note {19.3) below) = 2008
(v}  0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Mon- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares of Rs. 100 each = 14.76

[Refer note (19.3) below)

Total 266.09 228.14

Details of Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures

2,150 Senior Redeematle on Convertible Debetures of Face Vaue Rs.10,00,003 each
The detalls of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:
{Amaount ir Rs. Crores)

No. of mstal No. of
5No.| Original Tenor (in Months) Interest Rate {ing as at ing as at | Repayment Terms | Asat 31stMarch 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
31st March 2023 | 31stMarch 2022

3M MIBOR OIS +

1| B M°"th;Q:a”E'Y fayent Spread 18 13 Refer Note {i} 161.89 157.85
Refer Note (1 Refer Note (i)
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 23) o {28.56) (14,40}
Long-term Borrowin 133.33 143.45
Notes:

{0 The firstinstaliment of principal is payahle on expiry of 36 months from the date of first drawdown i.e. 11 December 2019,

{i}  As per the terms of Debentire Trist Deed, the coupon rate shall be charged at the rate of 3 MIBOR + 015 Coupon Interest payments are to be made on a manthly
basis far the year ended 31st March 2023
Buring the period ended 31st March 2023, the company had received approval from the COC &roup FLC for change in repayment schedule of orfginal 96 month
repayment ta 12 months guartely payout

{ii} The details of Security provided are a5 follows:
first-ranking security over the fixed assets of the Company
-first-ranking security over the debt service reserve account
-first-ranking pledge aver the shares of the Company owned by Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adll Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Dr Ashvin Agarwal, Dr
Ashar Agarwal, Ms. Farah Aganwal, Ms. Urmila Agarwa!, Or. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited and Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute
-non-disposal undertaking and negative pledge in respect of the shares: {a] in Dr. Agarwal's Eve Haspital Limited owned by the Company; and [b) in all Orbit
subsidiaries owned directly or indirectly by Orbit (as applicable); and
-personal guarantes of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiva Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwal, Or Ashvin Agarwal and Br Ashar Agarwal, members of the
Promoter Greup and carporate guarantea from Orbit.

(vl Balance in Escrow accounts represents amount deposited in the account specifically earmarked for three manths payment of { Interest + Principal) on debentures to
the debenture holders {Refer Note 15{B)).

() Durlng the year ended 31st March, 2023 the company has repaid INR 45 Crores to British Interrational Investments [Formery COC Group Plc) on 30th lune 2022 by way of
reffrancing the entire foan frat HDFC Bank

(vi}  Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2023 , the Company refinanced entlre NCDs hald by CDC Group Plc with ICICI Bank term loan

Details of Term Loan from Banks § Others - Secured

The Company has availed Term Loan fram Banks as at 31 March 2023. The details of tenor, interest rate, repayment terms of the same are given below:

{Amount in Rs, Crores)

No, of its | No. of |
5.No.| Original Tenor {In Months) Interest Rate outstanding as at | outstanding as at | Repayment Terms | As at 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
A1st March 2023 | 31st March 2022

| - Term Loan from HDFC Bank {Refer Note {i} below]

1 21 Months Quartely Payout | 3M T Bill + Spread 18 21 Refer Note i) 48.71 54,68
2 21 Months Quartely Payout | 3M T Biil + Spread 18 - Refar Note {1} 4096, E
3 72 Months EMI 3wt T Bill + Spread 72 =) Refer Note {1) 55.00 g
144.67| 54.58]
1) - Vehicle Laans from HDFC Bank [Refer Note (i) below)
2 60 875% 2 10 Principal Monthly, 0.09] 0.26
Interast Manthly
Sui-Total 0.09 026
Tokal of barrowings fram Banks 144.76 54.94
Less : Current Maturities of long-term borrowings {Rafer Note 23] {12.00) (5091
Lang-term Borrowings from Banks 132.76 49.84
Notes:

(i) The loans are secured by hypothecatian of respective Vehicles financed by the Bank.

{ii} The detaits of security provided against the HOFC Term loans are as follows:

-First charge by way of hypothecation on all Borrower's tangible movable assets, including movable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessartes, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets, aresent and future;

- Exclusive charge on all Barrower's current assets and receivables, including boak debts, operating cash flows, receivables, commissicns, revemues of whatsoever nature and
wheraver arising, present and future;

-First charge by way of hypathecation on all bank accounts and reserves of Borrower including but net limited to DSRA and other reserves;

-Subject to provisians of Section 13{2} and {3) of Banking Regulation Act, 1544, pledge of 8.8% of squity share capital and preference share capital of Borrower by the
Promoter to HOFC Bank exclusively; Bl will have a share pledge over 16.8% sharehalding of the Borrower held by the Promoter. For the remaining 10.6% stake shareholding
lenders will have 3 negative pledge.

- Parsonal Guarantees of Dr. Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athiya Agarwal, Dr. Adli Agarwal, Br. Anosh Agarwal, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashvin Agarwal, being the promoter and
relatives of the promater.

*- Non-Dispasal Undertaking and negative pledge in respect to shares of Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited {AEHL} owned by the Barrower.

{iii} The Company has abtained a written acknawledgement from the Bank that there were no non compliances with the loan terms and conditions as at 31 March 2023.
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19.3 Issues of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Curnulative Participativa Preference Shares

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has issued, 0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares ko Arven
Investrments Pte Ltd of Rs, 100 each into 124,301 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each [at @ premium of ks, 1,100 each] in its Board meeting held on 20 August 2021

The conversion of Fully and Compulsorily Canvertible Non- Cumulative Participative Preference Shares will happen at the earlier of two years ar a fund raise exceeding Rs.

100 Crores, at a fixed return aver the said period,

0.001% Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Face Valus of Rs. 1200 each

1. Pursuant to the extra ordinary general meeting of the company held en 12 August 2021, the company has alictted 1,67,366 units of Campulsorily Convertibe Debentures

{CCD) of Rs. 1200 each to Value Growth investments Holding Pte Ltd.

The conversian of Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures will happen at the earfier of two years or a fund raise exceeding Rs. 100 Crores, at a fixed return aver the

said period.
Note:

Pursuant to the hoard meeting dated 26 April 2022 , the Company has allotted 53,024 equity share to the holders of 1,24,301 Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares

halders and 71,394 equity shares to holders of 1,67,366 shares to al! of jts Compulsorily Convertible Dabentures holders.

20 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

[Amount in Rs. Crores]

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31st March 2022

Non-current Habilites
Measured at Fair Value

{al  Acauisition Liabilities {Refer Note below) 87.85 732
(k) Others 0.74 -
Tatal 88.59 132
Current

Measured at Amortised Cost

[a)  Payables towards purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 4309 10.65
b} Interest Accrued But Not Due on Bormowings

- from Banks 1.17 =

Measurgd at Fair Vaiue

] Acquisition Liabilities {Refer Note below] 33.45 7.08
Total 77.71 12.73

Nate: Acquisition Liabilities represents the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of various eye clinics which was acquired upte 31

March 2023.

21 PROVISIONS

{Amount in Rs. Crares)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2023

As at 31stMarch 2022

Non-current portion

{a) Provision for Employee Benefits:

- Gratuity Payable (Refer Note 37.3) 1.20 .32

- Compensated Absences {Refer Note 37.2) 2.39 1.30
Total 3.59 162
Current partion
{a)  Pravislon for Employee Benefits:

- Cornpensated Absences [Refer Note 37.2) 1.09 0.59
(bl Provision for Contingencies a.c8 a.0s
Total 117 0.67

21.1 The Company carries a ‘pravision far contingenties' towards various claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts {Refer Note 36), based on Manzagement's best

estimate, The details are as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particuiars

As at 3Ist March 2023

As at st March 2022

Opening Balance

0.08

Provision made during the year

0.08

Ampunts Utilized during the year

Unused Amounts Reversed during the year

Cinging Balanee

0.08

Nate:

whilst the pravision as at 31 March 2023 is considered as current in nature, the actual cutflow with regard ta said matters depends on the exhaustion of remedies available

under the faw based en varicus developments. No recoveries are expected against the provision.
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22 OTHERLIABILITIES

(Ameunt in Rs. Crares)

Particulars Asat 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
Current liabilities
{a}  Statutory Remittances 1.18 230
{b}  Advances frem Customers il 141
{e)  Gratuity payable - Current 1.2% Q.85
Total 4.16 4.56
23 CURRENT BORROWINGS
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Asat 31stMarch 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
{a) Loans Repayabie on Demand
(i) From Banks - Secured
~ Cash Credit Facility (Refer Notes (i) and (i} below} 0.60 4.22
(ii) Current Maturities of Lang-Term Borrowings (Refer Note 19,1 znd 19.2}
- fram secured borrawings 28.56 14.40
- from banks (secured} 12.00 5.09
Tatal 41.16 2371
Notes :
(i} The details of interest rate, repayment and ather terms of the Short Term Borrowings are as folfows:
(Amount in Rs. Crores)
at 31st March
Type MName of the Party Interest Rate Repayment Terms As 1073 are Asat 31st March 2022
Cash Credit facility fram Bank HOFC Bank Hore zazs;xf\ate = COn Demand 080 4.22

{1} The Cash credit facility avalled by the Comparny as at 31 March 2023 & 31 March 2022 is secured by the following:
- First and exchusive charge by way of hypothecation of current assets af the company

- Personal Guarantees of Dr, Amar Agarwal, Dr. Athlya Agarwal, Dr. Adil Agarwal, Dr. Anosh Agarwai, Dr. Ashar Agarwal and Dr. Ashwin Agarwal, being the promoters and

relatives of the promoters and Dr, Agarwal's Eye Institute.

24 TRADE PAYABLES

tAmount in R, Crores)

Particulars Asat 31st March 2023 | Asat 31st March 2022
Current
- Dues of Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprises {Refer Note 32) 14.16 6.77
- Dues of Creditors Other than Micre Enterprises and Smali Enterprises 46.14 46.90
- Disputed dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises (Refer Note 32} = =
- Disputed dues of Creditors Other than Micre Enterprises and Small Enterprises - -
- Other Trade Payable - 2
[Total 60.30 53.67

As at 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 yaars 2-3 Years Maore than 3 Years Total
- MSME 14.12 0.03 Q.01 - 14.16
- Othars. AD7B 4.19 0.42 0.73 46.14
- Disputed dues - MSME - - E -
- Disputed dues - Others - 2 E
Total 54.90 422 0.43 0.75 68,30
As at 3ist March 2022 Amourtt in Rs. Crores]
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 Years Nore than 3 Years Total
- MSME 5.76 0.01 e 3 &77
- Gthers 45.73 042 0.75 = 46.90
- Disputed dues - MSME E - - E
- Disputed dues - Others - - -
Total 52.49 043 0.75 - 53.67
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25 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Partleulars for the year ended 31st |  For the year ended 81st
March 2023 March 2022
(a}  Sale of Products {Refer Note {j] belaw) 123.39 B6.53
(b}  Sale of Services {Refer Note (i} below) 474.16 27491
{c] Other Operating Revenues 0.09 0.15
Total 597.64 361.59

251

25.2

Disaggregation af the revenue Information

The tables below present disaggregated revenues frem centracts with customers for the year ended 31 March 2023 by offerings. The Company believes that
this disagaregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertalnity of our revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market and ather

econamic factors.
MNates :

{1} Sale of Praducts comprises the fallowing:

[Amount in Rs. Croves)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 3ist

Particulars
March 2023 March 2022

Traded {Domestic) ;
(i) Opticals 69.45 49,23
fii)  Pharmaceutical Products 43.13 26.93
{iit)  Contact Lens and Accessories 185 1.42
114.43 ¥7.58

Traded {Export} :

i Opticals .03 o.04
{iil  Pharmaceutical Products - o.05
{ify  Clinical ltems and Equipments 893 2.86
896 8.95
Total - Sale of Products 123.3% £6.53

(i} Sale of Services comprises the following

[Amaunt ir Rs. Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
(i}  Income from Surgeries 393.79 22318
{li)  Income from Consultation 2105 1323
{iiij  income from Treatments and investigations 44.31 3850
Total - Sala of Services 474.16 274.91

The services are rendered to various patients and there are na patients who represent mare than 10% of the total revenue. However, the Hospital also serves
patients who are covered under insurance/health schemes run by insurance campanies, corporates and the central/state government agencies, wherein the
services rendered to the patient is on credit to be reimbursed by the said insursnce cofmpany, corparate of govermment agency.

Trade Receivables and Cantract Balances
The campany classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables 25 receivable.
A recaivable is a right to consideration that is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue is recognized as and when the related goods / servicas are
delivered f performed to the customer.
Trade receivable are presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

Contract liabilities include payments received in advance of perfermance under the contract, and are realized with the assocfated revenus recognized under
the contract.

Performance abligations and remaining perfarmance ahligations

The remaining perfermance abligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting
period and an explanation as to when the Company expecls te recognise these amounts in revenue, Applying the practical expedient as given in IND AS - 115,
the Company has not discloser information about remaining gerformance obligations In contracts where the original coniract duration is ore year or less or
where the entity has the right to consideration that corresponds directly with the value of entity’s performance completed to date.




Dr. Agarwal's

Health Care Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial

26 QTHER INCOME

for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Partiedlars March 2023 March 2022

{a}  Interest Income

- Bank depasits 248 1.0%

- Loans te Subsidiary {Refer note 38) 3.18 2.45
{b}  Interest Income - Other Financial Assets at amortized cost 129 0.14
{¢)  Net gain on termination of right-of-use assets - 2.44
{d}  Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 0.05 =
{e]  Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back c.ad 229
{fl  Interest on incame Tax refund 013 143
{g)  Netgain on Ferelgn Currency Transactions 0,66 i
{h}  Miscellaneous income

- Qther Miscellaneous tncome 1.75 .53

- Dividend 3.00 =
{i Profit on Redemption of Current Investments 4.66 =
Total 17.70 10.37

27  PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE

{Amownt in Rs. Croras)

For the year ended 3fst

Faor the year ended 31st

Particulars March 2023 March 2022
{a)  Opticals 2608 20.02
(b}  Pharmaceuticals Praducts 2975 1771
{c)  Contact iens and Accessories 134 1.14
d}  Chinical Items and Equipments 7.02 7.02
Total BLT0 45.89

28  CHANGES 1N INVERTORIES OF STOCK IN TRADE

A. Inventaries at the beginning of the year:

(Amount in #5. Crores)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Partlculars
March 2023 March 2022
{a) Opticals 4.55 299
{k)  Pharmaceuticals Praducis 2.81 2.27
{c]  Contact Lens and Actessories ..70 0.24
{d) _ Clinical lterns and Equiprments 1.38 1.01
Total {A) 0.44 6.51
B. Inventories at the end of the year: [Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
particulars for the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2023 March 2022
fa}  Opticals 580G 4.55
{b) Pharmaceuticals Products 4.72 2.81
fc) Contact Lens and Accessories 1.39 0.70
(d) Clinical Items and Equipments 0.04 1.38
Total {B) 11895 9.44
Total (4] - (B) 258 [2.93}
29 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
[Amaunt in Rs. Crores}
Partleulars For the year ended 31st | For the year ended 31st
March 2022 March 2022
{a]  Salarles and Bonus BlL.21 53.72
{b)  Centributions to Provident and Other Funds {Refer Note 37.1) 4.77 338
{c}  Staff Welfare Expenses [Refer Note 37.1} 408 210
{d) Employee Stock option E {Refer Note 43.4 and 18.3) 0.78 -
Total 90.85 59.18
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30  FINANCE COSTS

[Amaunt in Rs. Crares)

For the year ended 3]st

for the year ended 31st

i March 2023 March 2022

{a)  Interest on Lozn

(i) On Term Loans 738 1.65

{ii} On Debentures 14,16 16.67

{iil) On Cthers 5.85 1.16

[iv) interest an Acquisiticn Lizbilities 12.86 -

(b}  Interest on Lease Liability [Refer Note 40} 2151 17.09
Total 61.B6 36.57

31  DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

{Amount in Rs. Crores)

Particulars

For the year ended 3ist

For the year ended 31st

March 2023 March 2022
{g)  Depreciation on Tangible Assets {Refer Note 5) 2547 28.00
{b)  Amortization on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 7) 33.53 321
{c]  Depreciation on right of use asset {Refer Note 6 & 40) 32.81 18.38
{d} __Impairment on Intangible Assets E 3.70
Total 91.76 59.29

32  OTHEHR EXPENSES

{Amaunt in Rs. Crores)

For the year ended 31st

For the year ended 31st

Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
{a) Cansultancy Charges® 101.64 59.86
{h) Consumables 84.57 48.43
(¢} Power and Fuel 7.29 4.88
(d)  Water Consumption 0.30 0.25
fe}  Rant (Refer Note 40} 6.88 4.08
{f Repairs & Maintenance
- Equipments 4.53 257
- Cthers 517 420

{g}  Hospital Maintenance Charges 1077 8.50
{h}  Insurance 185 108
fi)  Ratesand Taxaes 235 058
{l  Cammunication 2.45 1.63
{k]  Trevelling and Canveyance B.08 4.37
1] Printing and Statlanery 247 128
{m}  Legal and Professional Charges 9.16 6.33
(n} Software Maintenance Charges 3.42 1.39
(o)  Business Promaticn and Entertainment 8.55 5.34
{p}  Marketing Expenses 12.97 7.23
{a}  Payments to Auditors {Refer Note 32.1 below) 0.45 0.41
{r}  BankCharges 248 159
{s)  Met Loss on Foreign Currency Transactions and Transatatiens 0.29 o1y
{t)}  Allowance for expected credit losses 6.71 530

Less:

Bad debts writter off -

(Release of provision) E
[u}  Loss on property, plant and equipment discarded - 0.48
{v}  Impairment Loss - 3.09
{w) Miscellanecus Expenses 2.06 177
Total 285.32 174.91

* Cansultancy charges Includes an ariount of Rs. D.74 crares relating Share Appreciation Expenses. (Refer Note 43.4}

321 Payments to the Auditors Comprises !

{Amaunt in Bs. Crares)

. For the year ended 315t | For the year ended 31st
Particulars
March 2023 March 2022
{2} As Auditars:
- For Statutory Audit 0.35 0.29
~ For Quarterly review 2,03 0.03
- Other Services . b 0.03
- Goods and Service Tax/Service Tax 0.07 0.05
Total 0.5 0.41
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33 Disclasures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

(Amgunt in Rs. Crores)

Particulars™ 2022-23 2021-22
{i)  Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the epd of the accounting year 14.16 &.76
(i} Interest dug thereon remaining unpaid to any supplieras at the end of the accounting year 0.17 0.08

(i} The amount of interest paid along with the amgunts of the payment made to the supplier beyond - -
the appainted day

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year .17 0.06
{v] Theamount of interest accried and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year 017 Q.06
{vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when 0.17 .06

the Interest dues 25 above are actually paid

*Dues ta Micro and Small Enterprises have heen determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information collected by the
Management.

34 Disclosure under Section 186 (4} of the Companies Act, 2013
The particulars of investments made as required to be disclosed ufs 186 (4} of the Companies Act, 2013 are disciosed in Note 8 of Notes farming pert of the
Standalone Financial Statements.

The particulars of the loans provided is disclosed in Note 94i} of the §

e financial st

The particulars of guarentees given as required to be disclosed u/s 186 (4) of the Companias Act, 2013 are as follaws:
{Amount In Bs, {rores)

Beneficiary of the Guarantee Party ta which Guaraniee is given As at 31st March 2023 Asat 31st March 2022
Dr. Agarwal's Eve Hospital Limited (Refer Note 38} Axis Bank 43.83 31.94
Aditya Iyat Eve Hospita! Private Limited {Refer Nota 38) Kotak Mahindra 2.14 3.38
Qrbit Health Care Services (Mauritius} Limited {Refer Note 38) SBM Bank [Mauritius) Limited i -

Further, 1350,000 Equity Shares held by the Company in Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited has been pledged as one of the collateral secaritles with Axis Bank, for
the leans teken by Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited to the extent of INR 43.83 crores. The abave mentioned amounts are autstanding position as on 31 March
2023 and does not include the entire sanctioned amount, where the entire sanctioned amount is Rs. 90.04 crores.

35 Capital Commitments
{Amount in Rs, Crares)

Pzrticulars Asat 31st March 2023 As at 315t March 2022

{i) The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account, net of advances and 2086 6.98
not provided for

36 Contingent Liabilities

{Amount in Rs. Crares}

Particulars Asat 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Consummer Claims against the Company not acknowl|edged as debt @15 015
Notes:
{i) Based on Professional Advice /N nent’s of all the above claims, the Campany expects a favorable decision in respect of the above claims and

hence no specific provision has been considered for the above claims. Also refer Note 21.1

{iit The amounts shown ahove represent the hest possible estimates arrived at on the basis of the available information. The uncertainties and possible
reimbursement are dependent on the outcome of the various legal proceedings which have been initiated by the Company or the Claimants, a5 the case may be
and, therefore, cannot be predicted accurately.
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37 Employee Benefits
37.1 defined Cantributlon plans
{a} The Company makes Provident and Pension Fund contributions, which is a defined contribution plan, for qualifying employees. Additionally, the Company alsa provides, for

covered employees, health insurance through the Employee State Insurance scheme. Under the Schemes, the Company is required to contribute 3 specified percentage of the
poyroll casts to fund the benefits. The contributions paysble ta these plans by the Campany are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

(b) Expenses recopnized :
{Amount in Rs. Crares)

For the year ended | For the year ended

gegtlonlarg 315 March 2023 | 31st March 2022

{1} Included under ‘Contributions to Provident and Qlher Funds' (Refer Note 29)

Contributions to provident and pension funds 3.88 271
(i} Inclided under 'Stalf Welfare Expenses’ {Refer Note 29)
Lontributions to Employee State Insurance 0.59 045
37.2 Cempensated Absences {Amount in Rs. Crores}
F Fs
Particutars or the year ended| For the year ended

31stMarch 2023 | 315t March 2022

l2) Included under "Salarles and Benus ' {Refer Note 29 ) 1.82 0.67
[Amnunt In Rs. Crares)

Asat 3tst March | As at 31st March

Particulars
2023 2022

[b) Nez asset / (liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet (3.08) (1.89)
Current portion of the above (Refer Note 21} |1.09) {0.59)
Non - currert gortion of the above {Refar Note 31} 2.39) (1.30)
The Key Assumptions used {n the computation of pravision for compensated absences are as given bel

Partiulars 2022-23 2021-22
Discount Rate {% p.a} 7.3% 5.85%
Future Salary Ingrease [% p.a 10% %

37.3 Defined benefit plans

The Company operales a gratuity plan covering qualifying emplayees. The benefit payable is calculzted as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 end the benefit vests upan
completion of five years af continuous service and once vested It is payable to employees on retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the
gratuity is payable irmespective of vesting. The Campany makes annual contribution to the group gratuity scheme administered by the Uife Insurance Carporation of Indfa.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the presemt value of the defined benefit obligation were cerried out as 2t 31 March 2623 by M/s
Kapadia Actuaries and Consultants. The present value of the defined henefit obligation, and the related current service cost and paid service cost, were measured using the
projected unit cost credit method.

{a] Amount recognized [n the statement of profit & loss (including other comprehensive income) in respact of the defined benefit ptan are as follows :
{Amount in Rs. Crores,
For the Year ended | For the Year ended

Particulars st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
T 3 in of Prafit & Loss In respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
Service Cost [Refer Notefi] helow) :
- Currant Service Cost 0.83 0.64
- Nat Interest expense 0.04 0.01
Components of defined benefit costs recagnized in the Staternent of Prafit and Loss 0,89 0.65

Remeasuremznt on the net defined benefit liability:

Retum on plan assets (excluding amount included in net intetest income} {0.02} 0.01

Actuarial gains and loss arising frem changes in Demographic assumntions & 0.20

Actuarial gains and loss arising frem changes in Financial assumptions 0.06 Q.15

Actuarial gains and fass arising from experience adjustments 0.65 044
Camponents of defined benefit costs tzed n other ive income 0.69 0.80
Total defined benefit cost recogrized in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive intome 1.58

{i) The current service cost and interest expense for the vear are included In Nete 29 - "Employes Benefit Expenses” in the Statement of Profit & Loss under the line item
“Cantribution to Provident and Other Funds”
{ii} The remeasurament of the net defined benefit liability is included in ather comprehensive income.

{b) The amount inciuded in the balance sheet arising from the entity's ohligation in raspact of defined benefit plan is as follows :

{Amount in Rs. Crares]

; As at 31st March | Asat 31st March
Particulars
2023 022
Nat Assetf{Liabiiity} recognized In the Balance Sheet
1. Present value of defined benefit obiigation 375
2. Fair value of plan assets 2.59
Net asset / [fiability} recognized in the Balance Sheet .16}
Current portion of the above (0.85)
Non - current portion of the above (0.32)
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Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit ohfigatian are as follows :
{Amount in Rs, Creres}

Particulars As at 32stMarch | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
Present value of defined benefit obligatian at the keginning of the year 175 264
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss:
- Current Service Cost 0.85 0.04
- Interest Expense (Income) 0.20 0.1l
Adjustments (0.07)
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasurement gains / {losses)
- Artuarial {Gzin)/ Loss arising from:
i. Demographic Assumptions - 0.20
ii. Financial Assumptions 0.08 0.1s
Experience Adfustments .64 0.44
Benefit payments {0.45} (035}
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 5.05 3.75
Moverent in fair value of plan assets are as follows ;
{Amount in Rs. Crares)
Pparticulars As at 31stMarch | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year i 2.58 2,12
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Prafit and Loss:
- Expected retum on plan assets 0.15 0.10
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income:
Remeasuremeant galns [ {lasses)
- Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions - =
- Return on plan assets (excluding amount included in net interest income) 0.02 {0.01}
Contribytions by employer 0.33 a.72
Benefit payments (0.44) {0.35)
Fair valae of pfan assets at the end of the year 2.64 2.58
The fair value of plan assets plan at the end of the reporting perfod are as follaws:
{Amount i» Rs. Crores]
pardculars Asat 31stMarch | Asat 31st March
2023 2022
lnvestiment Funds with Insurance Company
- tife Insurgnce Corporation of India .64 2.58

{it The plan assets comprise insurer managed funds. None of the assets carry 2 quaied market price in active market or represent the entity's own transferable inanciat
Instruments or property occupied by the entfty.

The Actual return on plan asset for the year ended 31 March 2023 is INR 0.17 crores { Fer the year ended - 31 March 2022: INR 0.09 crores).

Actuarizl assumptions

Investment Risk:

The present value of defined benefit plan liability Is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to the prevailing market yields of Indian government
securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

Interest Risk:

A decrease in the yietd of Indian government securities will increase the plan liability.

Longevity Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability s caiculated by reference ta the best estimate of the mortality of plan participents both during and after their
employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan Fahility is calculated by reference to the future salaries. In particular, there is a risk for the Company that any adverse salary
growth can result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees la future,

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valvation were as follows :

Asat 31st March | Asat 31st March
Particulars

2023 2022
Discount rate 7.3% 5.85%
Expected rate of salary Tncrease 0% 8%
Expected return on plan assets 7.3% 5.85%
Expected Attrition rate hased on Past Service [P5] [% p.a} /% 8%
Mortality Indian Assured Lives|Indian Assured Lives

[2012-2014) {2012-2014}

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market ylelds of Indian Govemnment securities as at balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligation

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniarity, promotion and other relevant factors.

1. in order ta protect the capital and eptimize returns within acceptahle risk parameters, the plan assets are maintained with an insurer managed fund {maintained by the Life
Insurance Corporation {"UC™) and is well diversed.
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Sensitivity Analysis:

The benefit abligation results of 2 such a scheme are particularly sensitive to discount rate, salary growth and employes attrition, if the plan provision do provide far such
Tnereases an commencement af pension.

The following table summarizes the impact in financiai terms on the reported defired benefit abligation at the end of the reporting peried 2rising on account changes in these
four key parametars:

(Amount in Bs. Crores)

Increase / (Decrease) on the Defined benefit Obligation LM [Asar3lsEarch
m23 2022
{il Discount Rate
Increase by 100 bps {4.89) {0.12)
Gecrease by 100 bps 5.24 0.113
{#¥) Salazy growth rate
Ingrease by 100 bps 5.22 0.13
Decrease by 100 bps {a.20) {0.12)
Attrition rate
Increase by 100 bps {5.05) {D.01)
Decrease by 100 bps 5.07 .01

These sensitivities have been calculated to show ihe movemant in deflned benefit chligatian in isolation and assuming there are na other changes in market conditions at the
accounting date. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not he representative of the actual change in the defined berefit obligations as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would cocur in isatation of one ancther as sorne of the assumptions may be carreiated.

Furthermare in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the present value of defined benefit obiigation has been calculated using the projected nit credit method at the end
of the reparting period which is the same as that app/led In calcufating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized fn the balance sheet,

There is no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensTtivity analysis from the prior years.

{h] Asset Llabllity Matching Strategies
The Company has purchased insurance poficy, which is basically a year-on-year cash accumulation ptan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is guaranteed
for a period of one year. The insurarce Company, as part of the policy Tules, makes payment of all gratuity liability accurting during the year {subject to sufficiency of funds
under the policy). The polley, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk. However, being a cash sccumulation plan, the duration of assets is shorter compared to the duratien of
lrabilities. Thus, the Company is exposed to movement in interest rate.

(i} Effectof Plan on Entity’s Frture Cash Flaws

A) Funding Acrangentents and Funding Palicy
The Campany has purchased #n insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuTty 10 the employees. Every year, the insurance Company carries out 3 funding valuation based
on the lstest empioyee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising a5 a result of such valuation s funded by the Company.

B} The Compary expects to make a cantribution of INR 1.21 crores during the next financlal year.
€} The weighted average duration of the benefit obligatfen at 31 March 2023 is 3.40 years (as at 31 March 2022 is 3.4 years).
D) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Expected cash flows over the next

{valued on undiscaunted basis) f{maunk in|AszErores)

Within 1 year 1.11
2105 years 330
6 to 10 years 167

mare than 10 vears =

{it Experience Adlustments

Definad Benefit Obligations 5.05 3.75] 2.64) 195

Particulars 2022-23 | 202122 | 202021 2019-20 201819
1.39]

Plan Assets 2,64 2.58 1.60)

Surpius / {Deficit| {2.41) {1.17)

(0.35 ..
Q.15
Experience Adjustments on Pfan Assets = = = = =

Experience Adjustments on Plan Uahiities 0.54 0.44]
Experience adiustments related to prior years have been disclosed based on the information to the extent available.




DOr. Agarwal's Health Cave Limited

Notes {orming part of the Standalone Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2023

38 Related Party Disclosure

38.1 Names of Related Parties and Naturz of Relatianships

Nature of

2022-23

2021-22

[

Subsidiary Company

Or. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited (AEHL)

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited [AZHL)

Orbit Healtheara Seryvices (Mavritius) Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services {Mauritius) Limfted

Grbit Healthcare Services International Operatlons Lim{ted
[Merged with Orbit Healthcare Services [Mauritius] Limited
w.e k. DT April 2022)

Crhit Health care servicas (Tanzania) timited

Grbit Health care services {Tanzania) Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Limited, Rwanda

Qrbit Healtihcare Services Limited, Rwanda

Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

Crbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited

COrbit Healhcare Services Mozambique Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services bique Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar

Crbit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar

Qrhit Healtheare Services Uganda Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limited

Orbit Heahthcare Servicas Zambla Limited

Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited

(Orhit Thellsh Healthcare Services (Nigeria) Limited
{Qistnvestment of entire halding from July 19, 2023)

Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services (Nigeria) Limited

Crbit Healthcare Services kenya Limited

Qrhit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited

Adity= Iyot £ye Hospital Private Limited

Adltya Jyot Eye Hospital Privare Limited |w.2 § 08 October 2021}

Advance Eye Institute Private Lmited ( Merged with AHCL
w.e.f01 April 2021)

{ii} |Associate Company

Elisar LHe Sciences Private Limited

Elisar Life Sciences Privote Umited

IdeaRx Services Private Limited

IdeaRx Services Private Limited

(i} |Enilties having significant
influence over the company

Value Growth Invesiment Haldings PTE Ltd
{un to 65 May 2022)

Valye Grawth Invesiment Holdings PTE Lid

Claymore [ itius) Pte. Led

Claymora investments {Mauritius) Pte. Ltd

Pte. ttd (w.e.f 05 May 2022)

Arvon Investments Pte.[w.e.F 05 May 2022)

{iv} |Key Management Personnel af Dr. Amar Agarwal

Dr. Amar Agarwal

the Company

Or. Athiya Agarwal

O, Athiya Agarwal

Mr. Balakrishnan Venkataraman

Mr.Trichur Ramasubramanian Ramachandran

Dr. Ashvin Agarwal

Mr. Sanjay Bharambir Anand

Mr. Sanjay ir Anand

Dr. Ashvin Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

Dr. Ashar Agarwal

Dr. Adit Agarwal

Dr. Adit Agarwsl

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

Dr. Anosh Agarwal

M. Shiv Agrawal Mr. Shiv Agrawal
Mr. han Arumugam [Company Secratary) Mr. ikainathan Arumugam [Comeany Secretary)
Mrs. Maenakshi Jayaraman {AEHL) Rrs. kshi {w.e.f 16 December 2021} (AEHL)

- ¥
M5, Jully H Jivan {up to 13 Aug 2021) [AEHL)

Ms. Lakshmi Subramanian {AEHL)

M. Lakshrmi Subramanian (AEHL}

Mr. Surash £shwara Prabhala {up to 04 May 2022}

Mr. Suresh Eshwara Prabhata

Mr. B, Udhay Shankar {Group CFO)

I, B, Udhay Shankar [Group CFO)

Mr. Venkatesh Ratnasami {up to D5 May 2022)

Mr. Venkatesh

Mr, Ankur Nand Thacani (w.e.f 05 May 2022)

Mr. Ved Prakash Kalanariz {w.e.f 05 May 2022)

v

Enterprise over which the KeyDr. Agarwal's Eve Institute

Management Personnel of the|Dr. Asarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited

Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute

Or. Agarwal's Eye Institute Private Limited

Company is in a posiion to|Maatrom Tect

and Legal Ventures Private Limited

Maatrum Technal and Legal Ventures Private Limited

exerzise controlfjoint contral

Orhit internaticnal

Grbit Internaticnal

*Refated party ips are as identified by the Mar

and relied upon by the auditors.
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38.2 Transactlons carried out with related parties referred to above in the ordinary covrse of husiness during the Year

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Farticulars Refated Party 2022-13 202122

Transactions during the Year

Ravenue

Sale of Goods Adilya lyol Eye Hospital Private Limited 026 -

Export Sales Orbit Healthtare Serivices Limited, Rwanda 0.37 0.17
Drbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited 098 i.23
Grbit Health Care Services [Mauritius) Bmited 0.43 0.89
Orbit Healthcare Services Mozarmnbigue Limited 150 Q.90
Orhit Healthcare Services SARL, Madagascar 0.46 0.37
Orkit Health Care services [Tanzania) Limitad 0.52 0.93
Orbit Healthcare Services Uganda Limitad 0.70 .68
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited 355 335
Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services (Nigaria) LimTtad 0.12 0.20
Crbit Healthcare Services Kenya Limited 022 025

Divigend Received Dr. Agarwal's Eya Hospital Limited 501 -

Corporate Guarantee Charges 0r. Agarwal's Eye Hospital Limited 0.07 0.11

Cther income Orbit Healthearz Serlvices limited, Awandz .04 0.02
Orbit Heatthcare Sarvices Ghanz Limited 0.09 0.05
Orbit Health Care Services {Mauritius) Limited 0.05 o.0s
Qrbit Healthcare Services Mazambique Limited 017 0.08
Orbit Healthrare Services SARL, Madagascar 0.04 0.03
Orbit Health Care services [Tanzania) Limited 0.0& 0.0s
Qrhft Healthcare Services Uganda Limited 0.03 007
Orbit Healthcare Services Zambia Limited Q.25 0.25
Orbit Thelish Healthcare Services [Nigeria) Limited 0.02 0.02
Qrhft Healthrare Services Kenya Limited a.03 0.02

Expenses

Reimhursement af Expenses. Dr. Agarwal's Eve Rospital Limited 1.84 2.37

Purchases Ideafix Services Private Limited 16.05 12.90

Maintenance Elisar Life Scienres Privats Limited 010

Asset Furchase Elisar Life Sciences Private limited 0.34 0.09

Recovery of Expenses

Consultaney Charges Orbit Healthcare Services Mozambigue timited - 0.50
Orbit Healthcare Services Ghana Limited 123

ESOP Expensas Dr, Agarwal's Eye Haspital Limited {Refer Note 18] 0.6
Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited {Refer Note 16] 008

SARS Expenses Dr, Agarwal's Eye Hospital Umited 0.37

Others Expenses Dr. Agarwal’s Eye Haspital Umited 0.24

Others

Rental Reposit Dr, Agarwal's Eye Institute 458

Capital Work in progress- Rent Dr. Agarwal's Eye Institute = 2,95

Expenses

investments Aditya lyot Eve Hospital Put Limited 635 26.00

Transfer of Capital Work In Progress Dr. Agarwsl's Eye Hospital Limited 11.96

Conversion of Preference shares Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE itd 20.08
Arvon investments Pte Ltd (issue af Compuisarily Convertible 1.24
Praference Shares)

Loan to Subsidiary Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 3.03 =

Interest Income an Loan ta Subsidiary | Ellsar iife Sciences Private Limited 3.18 S

Notes:

(i} The Company accounts for costs incurred hy / an behalf of the Retsted Parties based on the actuzl invaices / debit notes rafsed and accruals as confirmed by such related
parties. The Related Parties have confirmed te the Management that as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, there are o further amounts payable to { receivabla from
them, other than as disclosed above. The Company incurs certain costs on behalf of other companies In the group. These costs have been allocated/recoverad from the
graup companies on  basis mutually agreed to with the group companies.

{iij The Company has pravided Corporate Guarantees smounting to INR 77.51 crores to Awis bank (Previously in HDFC) for the loans taken by Dr. Agarwals Eye Hospital.
Further, 1,350,000 Equity Shares held by the Company in the Dr Agarwals Eye Haspital Limited (AEHL) has been pledged as one of the collateral securities with Axiz bank
{previously with HDFCY, far the loans taken by AEKL, The Cempany has pravided Corparate Guarantees amounting to INR 10.00 crores to Kotak bank far the foans taken by

Cr. Aditya Iyot Eye Hospital.

{ili} The Company bas provided Corporate Guarantess amuunling ta INR 2.53 crores {MUR 25,400,000} to SBM Bank [Mauritiys) Umited for the loans taken by Qrbit Heahh Care
Services (Mauritius) Limitad, its whelly owned subsidiary.
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283 © of key p
[Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars Aelated Party 2022-23 2021-22

Shart-term employee benefits Dr. Anosh Agarwal 3.2 1.05
[Refer Nate (i) or, Adil Agarwal a3s 112
Mr. B. bdhay Shankar 0.62 0.50
Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugam 0.46 031
Post employee benefits Or. Aposh Agarwal Q.00 0.00
Dr. Adié Agarwai 0.00 n.0o
Mr. B. Udhay Shankar 0.6a 0.00
Mr. Thanlkainathan Arumugam [1Eel] 0.00
Drher perguisites Or. Anosh Aganyal 043 0.45
Or. Adi Agarwal 0.45 0.99
Sitting Fees Mr_Shiv Agrawal 003 0.01
M. Balakrishnan 2.1 oot
Mr. Sanjey Dharambir Anand Q.02 0.01

Notes:

i} Excludes gratuity and comgensated absences which cannot be separately identlfied from the composite amount advised by the actuary.
(i) Employes Benefits paid to Dr Anosh Agarwal and Dr Adil Agarwal, represents remuneration of salary and altowences but excluding perquisites.

{iii) The remuneration payable to key management personnel is determined by the namination and remuneration commiltee having regard to the performance of individuais

and market trends.

[iv} Tharewere no balances outstanding to be paid / received asat the year end,

iv) The above rerm

for Key

persoanel does not include vehicle, communication

as MNil.

38.4 Balances outstanding as at year end

& other

far which the p

lsite vaiue is determined

[Amount in Rs. Crores)

Arvon lnvestments Pte ttd {issue of Compulsorily Convertible
preference Shares) {Refer Note 17.1 Notes)

Particulars Related Party As at 31st March 2023 As at 3%st March 2022
Assets
Trade Recelvables Orhit Healtheare Serivices imited, Rwanda 0.94 0.02
Orkit Health Services Ghans Limited 0.05 0.78
Qrivlt Healtheare Services Mozambigue Limited 1.34 0.26
Orbit Healihcare Services SARE, 0.03 0.26
Orbit Health Care services {Tanzania} Limited 0.04 11
Crbit Healtheare Services Uganda Limited 0.02 017
Orbit H e Services Zambia Umited 202 2.74
Qrhit Thelish Healthcara Services (Nigeria) Limited - 0.13
Criit Healthcars Services Kenya timited B.04 0.18
Orbit Health Care Services (Mauritius) Limited 0.36 0.03
Aditya Jyat Eye Hospital Private Limited G286 -
Other receivables Dr. Agarwal's Eya Hospital Limited 0.44 5
Elfsar Life Sciences Frivate Limited .03
Loans Elisar Life Sciences Private Limited 34.18 2828
] =
Trade Payable tcea Rx Services Private timited 3.35
Dr, Agarwal's Fye Hospital timited 0.25 242
Elisar Hfe Sciences Private Lmited 0.09 B.05
Instruments equity in nature Value Growth Investment Holdings PTE Ltd { issue of Compulsorily = 20.08
Lo ible Deb es) {fefer Note 17.1 Notes)
- 14.76

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. Mo guarantees have been given or received against the aforesald ourstanding balances. Thers have heen no
instances of amaunts due to or dus from related parties that have been written back or written off ar atherwise provided for during the year.
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9.8

a1

art of the Standalone Financial S

Segment Reporting

for the Year Ended 315t March 2023

The Company is engaged in proviting eye care and related services provided from its hospitals which are located In India. Based on the “management appreach” as defined in
Ind-AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chiel Qperating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and aflocates resources based on an aralysis of various
performance indicators by the overall busingss segment, |.2. Eye care related sales and services.
As the allocation of resources and profitability of the business is evaluated by the CODM on an overall basis, with evaluation into individual categaries to understand the
reasons for variations, no separate segments have been identified. Accordingly no additional disclosure has been made for the sepmental revenue, segmental results and the

segmental assets & [labillties.

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
AsSegment

India 588.68 8.93
Dutside Indiz 8.95 895
Total Revenue 597,64 17.88
ASegment Assets

India 1,383.70 68577
Cutside India 3.88 6.68
Total Assets 1,387.58 692.45

The Campany has maintained Gackup on daily basls of 11s accaunting recards maintained in electronle mode. The backup is maintasined in servers physically lacated autside India_

Leases

The Company has taken medical equipment and buildings on leases having remaining lease terms of more than 1 year to 10 years, with the option to extend the
term of leases. Refer Note & for carrying amount of right-to-use assets at the end af the reporting pericd by class of underlying asset.

The fallawing Is the breakup of turrent and nan-current lease liabilities:

{Amount in Rs, Crares)

Particutars As at 31st March As at 31st March
2023 2022
Currant 28.80 1597
Nen-currant 25445 140.15
Total 283.25 156.12

The contractual maturities of {ease Habilities on an undiscounted basis 1s as follows:

{Amount in Rs. Crares|

Leasae Ohligation

d Minimum Lease Commltment

Asat 31st March

Asat 31st March

2023 2022
Payable - Not later than ane year 52.45 3188
Payable - Later than cne year but not later than five years 196.63 120,91
Payable - Later than five years 155.58 83.88
Total 405.06 236.68
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:
Amount in Rs. Crares)
Particulars Far the year ended | For the year ended
3isk March 2023 31st March 2022
interest on lease liahilities 21.51 17.09
Expenses relating to short term leases 6.88] 4.08
Depreciation on right-cf-use assets 32.81 18.38
Profit an termination of lezse - 2.44
Amaunts recognised in the Cash Flow Statement:
Amount in Rs. Crores|
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
Tatal cash cutflow for ieases [54.57) (28.17)
Earnings Per Share
Amount in Rs. Crores}
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
£arnings Per Share - Basic —Rs. 40.35 {2.15}
Earnings Par Share - Diuted — Rs. 40.20 {2.15)
Profit/{Loss) after Tax 31.58 (1.47)
Less: Dividend on Compulsorily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares (Including Tax thereon] - -
Net Prafit attributable to Equity Sharehalders - {Basic and Diluted} 31.58 {147}
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value of Bs. 10 Each} - Basic 7,829,860 £,859,563
‘Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Face Value of #s_ 18 Each} - Diluted 7,858,549 6,859,962

Wote : During the current year the Cormpulsarily Convertible Cumulative Preference Shares are converted intg equity shares and hence na adjustments requirad.
for the previous year, such dividend on Compulsarlly Canvertible Cumulative Preference Shares were not considerad on account of less made during the

previaus year.
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42 Financlal Instrumsants

421 Capital Management
The Company manages capital risk In order to maximize shareholders’ profit by maintaining scund/optimal capital structure. For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital incudes
Equity Share Capital and Other Equlty and Dabt includes Borrawings and Other Financlal Uabilitles excluding Payables towards PPE net of Cash and bank halances. The Company monitors capital on the

tasis of the following gearing ratio. There is no change in the overall capltal risk management strategy of the Company compared to last year.

Gearing Ratio :

{Amaunt in Rs. Crores
Parkiculars As at 31st March 2023 Asat 3ist March 2022
BarrowIngs and Other Financial LabllTties 43096 266.25
Cash and Bank Balance [97.48) {60.00)
Net Debt [A) 33298 206.28
Total Equity (B} 561,56 158.91
Net Debt te equity ratio (A/8) 0.59 1.04
422 Categories of Financial Instrumants
The carrying value of the financial instruments by categories as on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as foliows:
{Amount in Rs. Crores)
Particulars As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
a) Financial Assats :
Measured at fair value through PRL {FVEPRL]
- Current Investments 33.66
Measured at amartlzed cost
- Loans 1.89 21.08
- Cash and cash equivalents 76.81 43734
- Other Bank baiznces 20.67 16.26
-Trade receivables 3972 3053
- Dther financiai assets 15.04 19.32
Measured at cost
- Non Current Investments 153.66 147.41
346,35 278.34
b Financial Liabilitles :
|Measured at amortized cost
- Borrowings 307.25 351.85
- Trade Payables 60.30 53 67
- Payables towards PPE 43.09 10.65
- Other financial liabilities 123.21 14.40
- Lease Liahilities 283.75 150.12
817.10 486.6%

The management assessed that fair value of cash 2nd cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans, borrowings, trade payables and other curent financial assets and liabilities approximate their catrying
amounts largely due to the shart-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financizl sssets and Fatilities is includad at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, ather than in a forced or
liquidatian sale.

The ds and wera used to estimate the fair value/amortized cost

1} Lomg-term fixed-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual losses and creditwerthiness of the
recelvables

2} The fair value af unquoted Tnstruments, loans fram banks and other financial lizbilities, as well as other non-current financial liabilities are estimated by discounting future cash flows using retes
currently avsilable for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. In 2ddition 1o heing seasitive ta a reasonably possible change in the foracast tash flows or discount rate, the fairvalue
of the unguoted fnstruments is also sensitive to a reasonably passible change in the growth rates. The valuation requires management o use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant
unaiservable inplts are disclosed in the tables helow. Management regularly assesses a rangs of reasanably possible alternatives far thase significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact
on the tatal fair value.

3) Fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) method using discaunt rate that reflects the isswer's barrowling rate as at the
end of the reporting period. The own non- perfarmance risk as at 31 March 2023 was assessed to he insignificant.

Falr Value Hierarchy

Level 1! Quoted prices funadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or {labilities.

Leve| 2; Inputs other than guoted grices included within Level 1 that are cbservaklz for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3; Inputs for the assets or fizbilities that are not based on observahle market dats [unobservable inputs).

Details of firancial assets and financial liabilities which were valued at fair vaiue as of 31 March 2023 and 21 March 2022 are disclosed in Note 42

42.3 Finantial Risk Management Framework

The Cempany's board of directors has everall responsibility for the establishment and aversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Company manages finanrial risk reiating to the
operations thraugh internal risk reports which analyze exposure by degree and magnitude of risk.

The Campany’s activities expose Tt to a variety of financial risks: liguidity risk, ceedil risk and market risk (including Interest rate risk and other price risk]. The Company’s primary risk management focus
is tw: miniprilze potential adverse effects of market risk on its fimancial perfarmance. The Company’s risk mansgemert assessment and policies and processes are established to identfy 2nd analyze the
risks fzced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and te moniter risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies and processes are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activitles, The Board of Birectors and the Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk assessment and
management policies and processes.
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{a] Liguldity Risk Management :

Uquidity risk refers ta the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial ebligations as they become due. The Commpany manages Its liguidity risk by ensuring as. far as possible, that It will always have
sufficient kiquidity to meet its fiabilities when due, under toth aormal and stressed canditions, withoul incurring unacceptable fosses or risk to the Company's ion. The Company

adequate reserves and banking facikties, and continuousky monitors the forecast and actual cash flows by matching maturing profiles of fimancizl assets and financial liabilities in accordance with the
approved risk management palicy of the Campany periodically. The Campany belisves that the working tal {including banklng limits not utilized) and its cash and gash equivalent are sufficient to
meet lts shart ang medium term requirements.

Liguidity and Interest Risk Tables :

The following tahles detall the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financizl iabllities with agreed repayment perlods. The tabies include hoth Interest and princlpal cash
faws.

To the extent that [nterest flows are floating rate, the undigcounted amaunt is derived from Interest rate curves at the end of the reperting period. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date

an which the Company may be required to pay.
{Amount Ix Rs. Crores

Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years 5years and above Tatal
21st March 2023
Interest bearing 14845 476.45 131.9% 756.85
Non-interest bearing 60.25 - - 60.25
Total 208.70 476,45 131.495 217.10
31st March 2022
Interest bearing 8LE1 138.09 20267 422,37

Non-interest bearing 64.32 = = 64.32
Total 145,93 138.08 202.67 486.69

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contracteal maturity for its non-derivative financial Assets with agreed repayment periads. The Company does not hold any derivative financial
instrument.

Amount in Rs. Crores]

Particulars Less than 1 year ita5years S years amd above Total

31st March 2023

tnierest bearing 99,37 - - 99.37
Nop-interest bearing 80.05 38.77 128.16 246.98
Total 179.42 38.77 128.16 345.35
31st March 2022

Interest bearing 43.76 3344 - 71.20
hor-interest bearing 53.71 - 147.42 201.13
Tatal 97.47 33.449 147.42 27833
(b} Credit Risk:

Credit risk i= the risk of financial loss ta the Company if a custemer or caunterparty to a financial Instrument falls to meet its contractual Credit risk entomp of bath, the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of eredit risk principally consist of trate receivables,
cash and cash equivalepts, bank deposits and other financial assets, None of the other financial instruments of the Company result in material concemtration of credit risk. Credit risk s controlled by
analyzing credit limits and creditwarthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtalning necessary approvals for credit.

The carrying amount of the financial assets recorded Tn these financiat statements, grossed up for any allowance for tosses, represents the maximum exposures to credit risk,

Trade receivables: The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demnpgraphies of the customer, including the defauit ¥isk of the
industry and credit history, alse has an influence an credft risk assessment.

Rafer Note 25 and Note 14 for the detalls in respect of revenue and receivable from top customers.

Credit risk on current cash & cash equivalent and derivatives is limited as the Company gererally transacts with banks and flnancial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

international and domestic credit rating agencres. investments primarily include investment in Mutual Funds.
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[] market Risk :

Miarket risk is the rTsk of loss of any future earnings, in realizable falr values or in future cash flows that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices [such as interest rates and fareign
cuirenty exchange rates) or in the price of market risk sensitive instruments a5 a result of such adverse changes in market rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive
financial instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables and all short-term and [ong-term debt. The Company is exposed ta market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk and
Interest rate risk and the market value of [ts vestments. Thus, the Company's expasure to market risk is a function of invasting and horrowing activities and ravenue generating and operating
aclivities in foreign currencies.

[c.1) Interest rate risi:

interest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash Alows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company’s management monitors the interest fluctuations, if any, and accordingly, take necessary steps to mitigate any interest rate risk.
Interest Rate senshivity analysis:

A change (decreassfincrease] of 100 basis points in Interest rates at the reporting date would increasef{decrease] equity and profit or lass by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all
ather vartables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Impact an Profit and loss far the reporting period (Amount in Rs. Crores)
q As at 3ist March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particulars
Increase by 100hps | Decrease by 100bps Increase by 106bps | Decrease by 160%ps
Impact on Profit and loss for the reporting period 3.09 | {3.09) 12.50) 2.50
Impact nn tota) equity as at the end of the petiod {Amount in Rs. Crares]
As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022
Particwlars.
increase by 100kps | Dacrease by 10Gbps Increase by 100bps 1 Decrease by 100bps
Impact on total equity s at the end of the reporting period 3.09 | i3.99} (2.50)[ 250

{c.2) Forelgn Currency Risk Managemest :

The Eompany transactions i 1 in foreign currencies and consequently, sxposures to exchange rate fluctuations arises. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts
during the year ended 31 March 2023 and there are no outstanding contracts as at 31 March 2022,
‘The carrying amounts of the Company's fareign currency denominated manetary assets and monetary liabilities 2t the end of each reporting period are as follows :

Asat 3lst March 2023 Asat 3kst March 2022
Particularss Currancy Amount in {Amaunt in Rs. Crores) Armount in {Amount in Rs. Crares]
Foreign Currency Forelgn Currency
Trade Receivables usp 473,498.00 3.88 £81,225.00 6.68
Other Current Lahilities usp - - - 0.01

Foreign Currency sershiviry analysis:

The following table getails the Company's sensitivity ta a 5% increase and decrease in INR against the relevant forelgn currencies. 5% is the rate used ir order to determine the sensitivity analysis
considering the past trends and expectation of the management for changes in the foreign cumrency exchange rate. The sensitivity amalysis includes the outstanding foreign currency denominated
manatary items and adjusts their transkation at the pericd end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates, A positive number below indicates 2 increase In profit / decrease in loss and increase in equity
where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant cumency. For a 5% wezakening of the INR against the relevant currenty, there wauld be a comparzble impact an the profit or [ess and equity and
balance helow would be negative.

Impact on Profit and loss for the reparting period {Amount in Rs. Crores)
For the Year Ended 31st March 2023 Far the Year Ended 33st March 2022
Particulers
Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5% Increase by 5% ! Decrease by 5%
usp 0.19 | f0.19) 021 1 (e.33)
Impact on total equity as at the end of the period {Amaunt in Rs. Crores)
d For the Year Ended 315t March 2023 For the Year Ended 31st March 2022
Particulars
Inerease by 5% [ Decrease by 5% Increase by 5% | Decrease by 5%
UsD 010} (0.19) 0.53 | (0.33)
Note:

This is mainly attributable te the exposure of recelvable and payable outstanding in the ahave mentioned currendies to the Company at the end of the reporting period.

42.4 Fairvalue of financial assers and financhal liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)

The Management cansiders that the carrying amount of financial assets ard financial ilabilities recopnized In the financial statements approximate their fair values.

42,5 Offsetting of Anancial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has not affset financial assets and financial Nabilities.

426 Fair Value Measurement

Financial Assets and Financiak Liabilitles that are not measured at fair value

Fair Value as at {AmounY in Rs. Crares)

Financial Assets f Fimancial Liakhifities As at 315t March s at 31st March 2022 Fair Vatue Hierarchy Walue Technigue and Key Inpits
2023
5 diaries - Or . = -
Inves.tment in Subsidiaries - Dr. Agarwal's Eye 20868 24651 Lewel 1 Quoted Net Asset value in Active
Hospital d markels

The management assessed that financial assets and financial liabifities that are not measured at fir value In the financial statements approximata the feir valuss
{except as as stated abave) and accordingly, ne disclosures of the fair value hierarchy is required to be made in respect of these assets / liabilities.
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Sharg-based payments
Seock Awards

Under the Cempany's stock awards program, the employees and declars of the Campany and its subsidiaries are granted shares and other stock awards of the Company, in accorgance with the terms and
conditions as speclfied in the plan. The plan Is assessed, managed and administered by the company, whose shares and share based benefits have been grented to the employees and doctors of the
Company and its subsidiaries. The company currently operates an empleyee stock option {"ESGP") and a share appreciation rights ["SAR"}. The Company has accaunted for the amount of expense under ind
AS 102 considering the valuations carried cut in respect of the same and has made the related disclosures reguired under [NDAS 102. The amounts recavered from the subsidiaries in respect of the cost
towards such stack awsrds given ta its employees and dottors are accounted for under Note 16.

ESOP

The stock awards granted generally vest over a four service period. The annual stock awards are granted effective of the 28th November 2022; Lhis effective date is the "award date” used for stock plan
adminlstration plmpases and shown In the awards agreement. The maximum number of shares In 2 stock award is, not exceeding 2% af the Paid Up Capital of the Gompany, 25 an August 12, 2023,
comprising 1,58,522 Options to or for the benefit of the employzes of the Company and its subsidfaries.

Tha foltowing recontilas the share options 3t the baginning and at the end of the year:

Amount in As.
Weighted
i Number of options E*' average
per 31 March 2023 price of option
i 31.March 2023

Options outstanding as at the beginning of the year - -
Add: Options granted during the year 66,008 1,594
Lass: Options lapsed/forfeited during the year = 2
Less: Options exercisad during the year - =
Less: Qptions Transferred durlng the year

Options outstanding as at the year end * 66,008 1,584
* included 37,832 options granted to employees af the subsidiaries
The fair value of each award was estimated on the date of grant using the following assumptions:

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2022-23
Option price at the grant date 1,5932.06
Gptlan fife 4 years
|Exercise price 21,548
SAR

The share appreciation rights {SAR} glves consultant doctors of the Comgany and its subsidiarias the oppartunity to receive a cash bonus equal to the appreciation in the vaiue of the units which shall, for
each Unit, be the difference hetween Fair Masket Value of the equity shares as at Payment Event Trgger(PET}* of Dr. Agarwal's Health Care Limited {the company) and Rs. 2,542/ (excercise price) as stated
ander the Plan

*PET is defined =5 either 1 of the 3 below:

i. On the oeeurrence of an Initizl Public Gffer {IPO) by the Company

ii. Entry of any naw investor In the Campany acquiring mare than 30% shareholding or change of shareholding by more than 30% of the paid up capital in any manner.
ii. Any other event that the Board may decide at [ts ownh discretion.

Hawever, the payment timing shall not exceed 4 {four) years from the date of grant. If FET occurred enly after 4 (four} years from the date of grant, then the 100% of the paymant will 5e made at the end of
the fourth year.

Ampunt in Rs.
i Number af aptions Weithad ave.rage
Partitulars 21 March 2023 price of option
il 31 March 2023

SARs gutstanding as at the Geginning of the year -
Add: 54Rs granted during the year 53,420 2,827
Less: SARs lapsed fforfefted durng the year -
Lass: SARs exercised during the year - o
Less: SARs Transferred during the year

Options ing as at the year end* 53,420 827

* Included 21,860 apions pranted to employeas of the subsidiaries
The fair valua of each award was estimated on the date of year end using tha following assumptions:
Amounk in Bs.

Particulars Z022-23
Share Appreciation Right price at the grant date 2,827
Option tife 4
Exergise price 2,548
Tatal expense accounted for by the Company on account al the ahove are given balow:

Rs. In Crores

For the year ended
Particul;
eulars 31 March 2023

ESQP cost accounted by tha Company {Refer Note 39) are
SAR cost accounted by the Company [Refer Note 32} [

Total 1.52
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Ratios

The following are the analytical ratios for the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022

Asat 31st | Asat 31st
i (i Naot:
Particulars Numerator Denominator March 2022 | March 2022 variance e
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.94 1.08 -11%
) R . .
Dabt Equity . Total Debt . Sharehold’er‘s Equity 1.05 2405 49% Refer Note 1
Debt coverage ratio Earnings available for debt Debt Sarvice 154 164 -6%
service
Return on equity % Met Profits after taxes Average Sharehclder’'s Equity 8% -1% 1218%
Refer Note 1
and Note 2
Trade receivahles turnover |Revenue Average Trade Reteivable 16.37 13.13 28%
N Refer Note 2
ratio
Trad ables turm Purch: Average Trad 3 258 1.84 40%
ra' e payables turnover urchases verage Trade Payable Refer Note 3
ratio
Net i i ing Capit . i -186%
et Capital Turnover ratio |Revenue Working Capital (47.51) 54.93 1 Refer Note 4
Net it rati i 5% o 2104%
et profit ratio Net Profit Revenue % Refer Note 2
Return on capital Earning before interestand  |Capital Employed 0.14 G111 |  28% Refer Nota 1
employed taxes
Return pn investment Incarne generated from Time weighted average NA NA - .
investment investment
Inventary Turnover ratio | Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory 7.76 612 27% Refer Note 3

*Total debt includes long term and short term barrowings and lease Fabilities.

Notes:
1. The ratios for the period ended 31 March 2023 is not comparable with the periad ended 31 March 2022 as there were fresh eqguity issue and
canversian that contributed ta this change.

2. This is primarily on account of increase in revenue and higher collections from customers compared to the previous period.

3, This is primarily on aceount of increase in purchases which is in line with the increase in revenue and business operations.

4, This is primarily due to accounting of deferred considerations payable (current portion} in accordance with Ind AS 183 in relation to
acquisitions made during the current year, which increased the current liabilities as on 31 March 2023.

Undistlosed Income
The Company does not have any transaction which are not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclased as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Transactfons with companies whose name is struck-off

The Company reviewed the status of all its customers and vendors, as at 31st March 2023, in MCA portal, and observed that & Company does
not have any transaction or cutstanding with struck off companies under Section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

COther disclosures

The company has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose far which it was taken at the balance sheet

date.

The Company neither has any immovabie property nor any title deads of Immovable Property not held in the name of the Company.
During the financial year, the Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right of Use Asset and Intangible Assets.

The Company has not granted any loans or advance in the nature of loans to promoters, directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the related
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jaintly with any other persan, except for the below :

{a) The Company had granted loan of Rs. 3.05 ¢rores during the current year and has an outstanding loan receivable{inclusive of interest
accured) of Rs. 31.42 crores as on 31 March 2023, The schedule of repayment of principal is stipulated as to be repaid over a perfod of 5 years,

though specific instalments for each period has not been specified. However, the payment of interest has not been stipulated.

The Company does not have any intangible assets under development as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, and hence disclasure under
Schedule Ili is not applicable.

No proceedings have baen initiated during the year or are pending against the group as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 for halding any
benami property under Benami Property Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988.

The company has been sanctioned warking capital limits in excess of INR 5 crores, in aggregate, at any point of time during the year, for 2 period
of 60 days, fram banks on the basis of security of current assets but were not required to submit the quarterly returns or statements. Hence,
reporting on the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks is not applicable.

The Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender,

The Company does not have any charges or satésfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory periad, as at the year ended 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022.
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{x]  As at 31 March 2323 and 31 March 2022, the Company has subsidiaries and complies with clause (87) of Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(i} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or entityiies), including foreign entities {intermediaries] with the
understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(ii] provide any guarantee, security or the ke on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

(i)} The Company has not received any fund from any person(s] or entity{ies), inciuding foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
{whether recarded in writing or atherwise) that the Company shall:
{i) directly or indlrectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
hehalf of the Funding Party {(Ultimate Beneficiaries} or
{ii) pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

{xili) The Company neither has traded nor invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the Financial year.

{xiv) The Company doss not have any investment properties as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 as defined in Ind A3 40.
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45 Approval of Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Company has reviewed the realizzble value of all the current assets and has confirmed that the value of such
assets in the ordinary course of business wili not be less that the value at which these are recognized in the financial statements. In
addition, the Board has also confirmed the carrying value of the non-current assets in the financial statements, The Board, duly taking inte
account all the relevant disclosures made, has approved these financial statements in its meeting held on 10 August 2023.

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors

M X

pr. Anosh Agarwal
Wholetime Directer
DIN: 010272 DIN: 02636035
l’/
L]
Mr. B.Udhay $hankar Mr. Thanikainathan Arumugan
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Chennaj
Date : 10th August 2023




